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ASX APPENDI X 4E

The following information for Genetic Technologiesnited (“GTG” and the “Company”) is provided undeisting Rule
4.3A of the Listing Rules of the Australian SedaestExchange (“ASX”). The financial informationopided in this
Appendix 4E covers the consolidated Group, comqgiséenetic Technologies Limited (the parent entitydl all entities
that the Company controlled from time to time dgrihe year and at the reporting date (30 June 201b¢ date of this

Appendix 4E i29 August 2016.

1. The reporting period covers the financial year eréf2 June 2016 (“Reporting Period”).

The previous corresponding period is the finangalr ended 30 June 2015 (“Previous Period”).

2. Results for announcement to the Market:

Reporting Period

Movement from Previous Period

2.1 | Consolidated revenue from $824.586 Decreased by Decreased by
ordinary activities ’ $1,187,332 59.0%
2.2 | Consolidated loss from ordinary $(8,458,965) Decreased by Decreased by
L . $351,202 4.0%
activities after tax attributable to
Members of the Company
2.3 | Consolidated loss attributable $(8,458,965) Decreased by Decreased by
$351,202 4.0%
to Members of the Company
2.4 | No dividends were paid during the Reportingdéenor are any proposed.
2.5 | There is no record date for determining divilentittements.
2.6 | All matters pertaining to the figures abovedescribed elsewhere in this Appendix 4E.

3. The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Indontbe consolidated Group covering the Reportiagde and

the Previous Period is provided in the attachedritial Report.

4. The Consolidated Balance Sheet for the consolidatedp covering the Reporting Period and the Pusvigeriod is
provided in the attached Financial Report.

5. The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for theaaated Group covering the Reporting PeriodthadPrevious

Period is provided in the attached Financial Report

6. The Statement of Changes in Equity Statement cuyehie Reporting Period and the Previous Perigdagided in

the attached Financial Report

7. No dividends were paid during the Reporting Pedothe Previous Period, nor are any proposed tag atate of this

Appendix 4E.

8. The Company does not have a Dividend Reinvestrmantd? at the date of this Appendix 4E.

9. The consolidated net tangible assets as at theféhd Reporting Period were 0.66 cents per share.

The corresponding figure as at the end of the BusWPeriod was 1.06 cents per share.

10. During the Reporting Period the Group did not gaifose control of any entities.
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ASX APPENDIX 4E (cont.)

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the conatidl Group does not hold investments in associates.

Apart from the information contained in the attatiénancial Report and elsewhere in this Appendixthere is no
other significant information needed by an investbmake an informed assessment of the Companyéhdial
performance and financial position as at the RegpRate.

The Company is not a foreign entity.

A commentary on the Company’s financial resigtshe year ended 30 June 2016 has been proiridbe section
entitledOperating Results for the Year of the attached Report.

The financial information contained in this liPnénary Final Report is based on the attached iz Report for the
year ended 30 June 2016 which has been auditdwliyampany’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Not applicable.

This Preliminary Final Report is based on ant®that have been audited. The independentasidéport included
in the Financial Report of the Company is subjean emphasis of matter paragraph with regardexistence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant daubthe Company’s ability to continue as a goiagaern. Additional
disclosure has been included in Note 2(a) of ttechéed Financial Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors submit their Report for the year ehg@ June 2016.

DIRECTORS

The names and details of the Directors of Genedhmologies Limited who held office during the 20ib@&ncial year and
until the date of this Report are stated belowlesmotherwise stated the following persons werzttirs during the whole
of the financial year and up to the date of thiore

Directors in office as at the date of this Report

Dr Malcolm R. Brandon, BScAgr, PhD(Non-Executive)

Dr Brandon was appointed to the Board on 5 Oct@086 and as its Chairman on 28 November 2012. ddeolier 40
years’ experience in commercially focused researah development and in building successful comganigich have
commercialised a wide range of Australian and im@gonal technologies. Dr Brandon is currently Mging Director of
genetics and artificial animal breeding companyn€ldnternational which uses cloning technologiepreserve the
genetics of elite animals.

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive)

Mr Buccilli was appointed to the Board in June 208 joined the Company in June 2014 as Chief Eiaa@fficer. In
November 2014, he was appointed to the positiolCluef Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officand was
subsequently appointed Chief Executive Officerébtary 2015.

Mr Buccilli has more than 35 years of senior managy@ experience in the financial services, contrgand recruitment,
property and retail industries in Australia andth8. He has held senior management positionshiithchip corporations
such as General Electric (‘GE”), Computer ScienogpGration, Coles Myer and Challenger Limited. Whdt GE, Mr

Buccilli was seconded to the U.S., where he wouiketthe GE Capital Headquarters located in Stam@andnecticut. He
brings to the Board extensive financial, corpogateernance, commercial and fund raising experience.

Dr Paul A. Kasian, PhD, MBA (Non-Executive)

Dr Kasian was appointed to the Board on 12 Dece2dt8. He brings to the Board a combination of gigeein strategic
business leadership and biotech investment giving & deep understanding on key value drivers fonpamies in
generating shareholder value. He is an experieexecutive director with demonstrated domestic atetmational success
in funds management, encompassing senior leadeirsbgstment and risk roles.

Dr Kasian has held senior leadership positions mumber of investment groups, and has significantd$ management
experience in Australia leading investment in thalthhcare and life sciences sector. He holds aiflicrobiology and a
Master of Business Administration, both from theuvdrsity of Melbourne, and is a member of the Aal&n Institute of
Company Directors.

Mr Grahame Leonard AM, BA (Hons), LLB, CA, CPA, FAICD (Dip), AFAIMNon-Executive)

Mr Leonard was appointed to the Board on 29 Noven@43 and also serves as Chairman of the Compaydit
Committee. He is a qualified Lawyer and Charteredodintant. He brings over 35 years’ experienclencorporate world
including Lysaght (BHP), BTR Nylex and The Thomps@orporation. His numerous community positions udel

Commissioner, Victorian Multicultural Commissio@hair, Victorian Government Multifaith Advisory Gip and former
Director of Transparency International Australtag(Australian arm of the international anti-cotiop watchdog).

Dr Lindsay Wakefield, MBBS (Non-Executive)

Dr Wakefield was appointed to the Board on 24 Sepér 2014 and also serves as Chairman of the Cogrspan
Remuneration Committee. Dr Wakefield started 8afetn 1985. In 1993 he left medicine to becomefulitme CEO of
the Company. Over the next 25 years, Safetech leeeafarce in the Australian material handling aiftthdy equipment
market, designing and manufacturing a wide rangénadistrial products. In 2006, Safetech was awarthed Telstra
Australian National Business of the Year.

In 2013, Safetech merged to become STS (Safetemimahi Solutions) which is Australia’s largest maotifeer and
supplier of dock equipment, freight hoists and @ostifting solutions. Dr Wakefield continues as Maing Director of
STS and has been a keen Biotech investor for pagt&'s, often at a mezzanine level.
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Company Secretary as at the date of this Report

Kevin Fischer, CPA, AGIA, ACIS, B. Com

Mr Fischer was appointed Company Secretary on Jgida 2016 following his appointment as Chief Fioial Officer

on November 2nd, 2015. He has over ten years’ e in senior finance roles with successful diesgjn companies,
such as QIAGEN and Cellestis. Mr Fischer is a Cind €hartered Secretary who has significant expegien the

financial management and reporting for internati@mperations

Interests in the shares and options of the Compargnd related bodies corporate
As at the date of this Report, the following Dimgsthold an indirect beneficial interest in therskaf the Company:

Mr Grahame Leonard AM 6,000,000 shares
Dr Paul Kasian 256,410 shares
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 14,754,763 shares

Dr Wakefield also has a direct interest in 570,588res and an indirect interest in 8,333,333 optibir Buccilli has a
direct interest in 14,236,111 options granted o binder the Employee Share Option scheme.

Apart from the above, no Director holds any intemeshe shares and options of the Company asatdte of this Report.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Corporate structure

Genetic Technologies Limited is a public companyitid by shares that is incorporated and domidiletjustralia. The
Company has prepared a consolidated financial répmrporating the entities that it controlled idgrthe financial year,
which are outlined in the following illustration tife Group’s corporate structure as at the date®Report:

Genetic Technologies Limited

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Genetic
GeneType RareCellect GeneType Technologies Phenogen GeneType
Corporation Pty. Ltd. Pty. Ltd. Corporation Sciences Inc. AG
Pty. Ltd.

Group overview

Genetic Technologies Limited is a molecular diaginesompany that offers predictive testing anésssient tools to help
physicians proactively manage women’s health. Tom@ny's lead product, BREVAGeIuS®, is a clinically validated
risk assessment test for non-hereditary breasecamd is first in its class. BREVAGaIns® improves upon the predictive
power of the first generation BREVAGEhtest and is designed to facilitate better inforrdedisions about breast cancer
screening and preventive treatment plans. BREVAGSR expands the application of BREVAG&nhfrom Caucasian
women to include African-Americans and Hispanicg & directed towards women aged 35 years or alwdwe have not
had breast cancer and have one or more risk fdotodgveloping breast cancer.

The Company has successfully launched the firsergéion BREVAGeHR" test across the U.S. via its U.S. subsidiary
Phenogen Sciences Inc. and the addition of BREVAEER, launched in October 2014, significantly expairtls
applicable market. The Company markets BREVA@&s® to healthcare professionals in comprehensivesbrieaalth
care and imaging centres, as well as to obstetsgnaecologists (OBGYNSs) and breast cancer siskssment specialists
(such as breast surgeons).

Principal activities

The principal activity of the entities within therdsip during the financial year was the provisionnoblecular risk
assessment for cancer.

There were no significant changes in the natutbeofsroup’s activities during the financial year.

Operating Result

The operating result for the year is directly refile of the Company’s concentrated focus on theaesion of its genetic
testing business, with emphasis on the sale anmdbdison of the BREVAGeplus® breast cancer risk test in the U.S.
through its wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary, Pheno§erences Inc. following the sale of the Australideritage business
during the previous financial year.

During the 2016 financial year, Genetic Technolsdiémited and its subsidiaries generated conse@gross revenues
from continuing operations, excluding other revenoie approximately $0.8 million compared to $2.0llion in the
preceding year. $(0.8) million of this differemtisdirectly attributable to the divested Heritdmesiness with the balance
of $(0.4) million due to a decrease in the overathbined sales of the BREVAGé&hand BREVAGeplus® tests.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)
Operating result (cont.)

Overheads have decreased by approximately $3 milionpared with 2015. The combined areas of géllimarketing,
administration (excluding net foreign currency &8s licensing and operations totalled $8.9 milfimnthe year compared
with $11.9 million for 2015. The decreased licagsactivities accounted for approximately $0.3 ionillof the decrease
with the remaining $2.7 million the result of theestment of the Heritage business in November 2bédefits derived
from restructure activities and better managemeoverhead spending.

There were no significant items reported duringysar compared to $1.4 million pre-tax profit oe gale of the Heritage
business and a write-down of $0.8 million agaihstdpening asset value for the Immunaid optionased in 2015.

Dividends and distributions

No dividends have been paid since the end of taeiqus financial year, nor have the Directors retemded that any
dividend be paid.

Convertible notes

With respect to the unlisted secured (debt) nbigswere issued to existing and new Australiaritini&inal and wholesale
investors in September 2014, and subsequently leecamvertible notes, following approval at the AainGeneral
Meeting held on 25 November 2014, during the yearfinal $25,000 of convertible notes plus cagstali interest were
converted into 1,091,093 ordinary shares in the @2om (2015: $2,125,000 plus capitalised interesewenverted into
150,961,041 ordinary shares).

Review of financial condition

Capital structure

As at the date of this Report, the Company hadah ¢d 1,715,282,724 fully paid ordinary sharesissue, all of which
were listed on the Australian Securities Exchaage, on the Nasdaq Capital Market in the U.S. veaGbmpany's ADRs
(American Depositary Receipts). Also at that ddttere were 53,852,778 unissued ordinary shartei€ompany under
option. As at the date of this Report, no ordiregres were subject to escrow.

Treasury and related policies
The Company has in place a cash management palimhvollows industry accepted leading practiceilyesting the

Company’s cash assets in a range of short to metiam interest-bearing deposits with appropriateed financial
institutions.

Cash provided by operations
During the financial year, the consolidated nehaastflows used in operations was approximately $Tillion. This is a

$2 million improvement compared to the prior fin@hgear. Overall, the Group’s consolidated castets decreased by
approximately $7.1 million during the 2016 finadgiear primarily to support ongoing operations.

Liquidity and funding

As at 30 June 2016, the Company also had corporatit card facilities with National Australia Bahkmited and Bank
of America, which had total credit limits of $15000 and $161,269, respectively. As at that datétal liability
outstanding in respect of these credit card faslitvas $32,051. Cash and cash equivalents, a8 atirge 2016, was
$11,179,687.

Audit Report
The Company’s auditor has included an “emphasimaifer” paragraph in the Audit Report relatinghe Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern (refer N&(@® Going concern).

Significant changes in the state of affairs

During the year the Company's strategy was to famughe expansion of its cancer diagnostic framch&gnificant
changes in the state of affairs of the group duitiegfinancial year were as follows:
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)
Significant changes in the state of affairs (cont.)

Key Managerial Changes

e Mr. Kevin Fischer was appointed Chief Financial i€df and joint Company Secretary, effective 2 Ndvem
2015. Mr. Fischer has subsequently been appoistedla Company Secretary effective 13 January 2016.

* Mr. Chris Saunders was appointed Senior VP Salédviarketing, Phenogen Sciences Inc., replacingNtérk
Ostrowski.

¢ On 22 June 2016, Dr Susan Gross was appointedr@deadical Director, Phenogen Sciences Inc.

Options
On 25 November 2015, the Company granted the follpwptions over ordinary shares in the Company;

¢ As approved by shareholders at the Company’'s AnGeakral Meeting held on 25 November 2015, 14,236,1
options to the CEO, Mr. Eutillio Buccilli. The optis, which were granted at nil consideration, lentitr. Buccilli
to acquire one ordinary share, at a strike prick0dd2 at any time up to, and including 24 Noven#i0, subject
to certain vesting conditions.

« 10,000,000 options to Key Management Personnek ofitions, which were granted at nil considerateoriitle
the holders to acquire one ordinary share, atikegtrice of $0.02 at any time up to, and includdgNovember
2020, subject to certain vesting conditions.

< 1,500,000 options to US based employees. The aptidnich were granted at nil consideration, entiitteholders
to acquire one ordinary share, at a strike pric8®058 at any time up to, and including 24 Sep&na®20,
subject to certain vesting conditions.

On 31 March 2016, the Company granted the followaiptions over ordinary shares of the Company;

« 7,500,000 options to Key Management Personnel.optiens, which were granted at nil consideratéeoriitle the
holders to acquire one ordinary share, at a spilee of $0.02 at any time up to, and including\ddrch 2021,
subject to certain vesting conditions.

» 500,000 options to a US based employee. The optidnish were granted at nil consideration, entte holder
to acquire one ordinary share, at a strike pric0dd39 at any time up to, and including 31 Jan@8&4, subject
to certain vesting conditions.

There were no other significant changes in the stbaffairs that are not described elsewhereignReport.

Significant events after balance date

There have been no significant events which hageroed after balance date.

Business strategy, future developments and prospsct

The Groups primary focus during 2016 has been deareard establishing the BREVAGaEnDs® test as a leading non-
hereditary breast cancer risk assessment tess ifrdable to all women who qualify for the testtaining Peer-reviewed
publication in medical journals, strengthening leé anagement team in the U.S., an intensifiedtanggted marketing
campaign with national reach, a refreshed BREVAGef@pwebsite and a reinvigorated social media preseace heen

key elements in the drive to achieve this goal.aftrership with international race car driver Mpda Mann to promote
BREVAGemlus® has been a cornerstone around which the markettivfias have been based.

BREVAGemlus®, a first-in-class, clinically validated risk assessitntest for sporadic (non-hereditary) breast carcéhe
2dgeneration version of BREVAGEH and incorporates an expanded SNP (Single Nucke®tidymorphism) panel of 77
SNPs providing a 10-fold improvement in the predicpower over the first generation test and is apwlicable to
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)
Business strategy, future developments and prospsafcont.)

women with African American, Hispanic and Caucasiaritage thereby not only expanding the applicatiaicity market
but also simplifying the marketing process for BREVAGerplus® testin U.S. clinics and breast healthcare/ imaging
centres.

During the 2017 financial year, the Group will seéeleffectively leverage its commercial capabdifieurther develop and
promote the sale and distribution of the BREVA@Er® breast cancer risk assessment test in the Udiighiits wholly-
owned U.S. subsidiary, Phenogen Sciences Inc.fdteys areas will include:

< Enhancing the validation base of BREVA@&s® in terms of ethnicity and age,

« aligning the current relationship oriented saleslehd®o the unique needs of the broad customer base,

» enhance the medical affairs presence to strengéh@iionships with physician Key Opinion Leaders;using
on the consumer in tandem with the physician nekwor

» Accelerating research and development activityaidevement of additional peer reviewed publicatiion
support of the test,

* leveraging further the Pippa Mann initiative,

Even though the BREVAGéW BREVAGerplus® concept has already demonstrated market acceptiiec€ompany
recognises that in order to secure wider commepeigér coverage and to improve the level of comialgpayer payments
currently received, it needs to provide additiomé@tence that demonstrates the impact of the testeatment decision-
making that is aligned with payer evidence requaets. As such, the Company has commenced a ségésical utility
studies that will provide further evidence to suppize product’s value proposition and clinical efts.

The first two of three clinical trials planned commaeed in Q4 FY16 with completion expected befoeeethd of H1 FY17.
A further longer-term retrospective in design daiitrial that will assess the impact of the tastMRI screening rates is
expected to commence in H1 FY17. Combined, these tstudies are designed to inform the medical aamignof the
measureable improvement in health outcomes assdaidth BREVAGeplus®testing.

Legal matters
There are no legal matters of a material natusevaunt affecting the Company as at the date oRbfsort.

Earnings / (loss) per share 2016 2015
Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents per share) (0.49) (0.82)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (cents peeshar (0.49) (0.82)

Material business risks

The Group operates in the biotechnology sectory iAvestment in this sector is considered to bé higk in nature. The
Group is subject to normal business risks including not limited to, exchange rate fluctuatiots tondition, liquidity
and volatility of global securities markets; chan@®e government policy and legislation (particitan Australia and the
U.S.); and potential litigation, all of which ardely outside the control of the Company’s Board lanagement. Other
risks that are more specific to the Company, tiséosén which it operates and its underlying bussactivities include:

Financial risk - With the exception of the year ended 30 June 2BELCompany has incurred operating losses inyever
year of its existence. As at 30 June 2016, the faom had accumulated losses of $109,444,248 andxteat of any
future losses and whether or not the Company caergte profits in future years remains uncertaihe Company
currently does not generate sufficient revenuentercits operating expenses. There is also naiogrtthat the Company
will be able to raise additional funds by issuinglier shares and/or the raising of debt and,dli $unds are available, on
what terms the Company would be able to secure.tRefier note 2(a) for further information on thetenial uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Companyiktyako continue as a going concern.

Competition - with respect to BREVAGeius®, the Company’s lead breast cancer risk test, th@pany is currently
subject to limited competition from biotechnologgdadiagnostic companies, academic and researcitufiosts and

government or other publicly-funded agencies. Hememany potential competitors, which include atévand public
sector enterprises in Australia, the U.S. and disegy have greater experience in the areas ofcinaesearch and
development, marketing, sales, distribution, tezdinand regulatory matters than the Company dddewever, the

Company maintains an extensive patent portfolicctvidioes provide some protection for the BREVAGes® test.

8
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)

Material business risks (cont.)

Intellectual property (“IP”) risks - the Company relies on its portfolio of patentatept applications and exclusive
licenses to patents relating to genetic technadogizhile the Company patents and protects itg fannot be certain that
additional patents will be issued to it or thatpttents will withstand challenges by others. mRatessued to, or licensed
by, the Company may be infringed or third partiesyndevelop similar technologies. Further, paten&y not provide
meaningful protection from competitors. The Compamay also need to sue, or be sued, by third gartigarding its
patents and other IP rights. These suits may sttya@nd would divert funds and resources fromG@benpany and cause a
distraction to Management.

Professional liability risks - by the very nature of its operations, the Corgfgahusiness exposes it to potential liability
risks that are inherent in the testing, manufasgnmarketing and sale of genetic tests. In tlemesf a mistake occurring,
including an incorrect result of analysis of gemetiriations or other screening tests performesl cthmmercial sale of a
genetic test by the Company may expose it to psifeal liability claims and possible adverse putylicLitigation of such
claims could be costly. Further, if a court weygdquire the Company to pay damages to a plaittif amount of such
damages could harm its financial condition, desjpigeCompany having significant levels of publia groduct liability
insurance coverage to protect it from such risks.

Government regulation— in addition to general regulation and laws ajglie to all businesses, the Company is subject to
accreditation regulation and legislation relatinggenetic research and testing. From time to tiederal, state and/or
local governments adopt or change regulationsimglab the conduct of genetic research and getediing. In future,
such regulations could limit or restrict the Compargenetic research activities as well as genetiting for research or
clinical purposes. Regulations restricting gentetiting could adversely affect the Company’s it market and sell its
products and services. Accordingly, any regulatioh this nature could increase the costs of ojp@sr restrict its
ability to conduct its testing business and migtvesisely affect its operations and financial caadit

Ethical issues- public opinion regarding ethical issues relatedhe confidentiality and appropriate use of genetsting
results may influence government authorities tbfoallimits on, or regulation of the use of, géndéesting. In addition,
such authorities could prohibit testing for gengtiedisposition to certain conditions, particulaidy those that have no
known cure. Adverse publicity or public opiniofiating to genetic research and testing could rethe@otential markets
for the Company’s services, which could adverséfgcaits revenues. Further, the patents it haldsr uses of “non-
coding” DNA have broad scope and have also beeaubject of much debate and some criticism in thdiaa Potential
licensees could take legal action to seek the ament] re-examination, revocation or invalidationtioése patents,
something which has happened previously on segecalsions, though the Company has prevailed sual cases.

BREVAGen™ - since the launch of the Company's BREVA@¢étest in June 2011, a number of potential commercial
risks have been identified. The test exists iewa area of genetic testing, being a predictive tasd it may take time to
establish credibility and educate potential custsnvehich may delay establishing reasonable ratezalefs. Despite
already having various studies and review publicetj clinician adoption of the test requires suiihresources and
effort. The establishment of a US company, sudh@f£ompany’s subsidiary Phenogen Sciences kqujnes staffing
with qualified and experienced salespeople who ireqtime to establish customer contacts and consalés.
Invariably, some new employees are not able to tattaphe new sales environment and may need toepkaaed,
potentially hampering growth. Even though the Camys laboratory has now been CLIA certified, UgBvernment
health care programs could potentially restrictaitslity to offer the test in the U.S., therebytriesing the available
market. The US healthcare reimbursement systemwhich the Company interacts is complex, involvangeries of
independent insurers and other third parties ireelto assist with credentialing and the administnadf the payment
processes. Establishing benchmarks with insuseestime consuming process which could delay theipe of initial
payments until such time as “rules” with each pdevican be established. The introduction of thewifible Care Act
in 2014 has created additional people with insugatmverage but has resulted in many people sajeptiticies with
higher deductibles. This could reduce the reimbuesg amount from insurers, place more cost ont@é#tient and thus
negatively impact the willingness of patients toesgto take the BREVAGEM test. The launch of BREVAGphus®
(expanded SNP panel applicable to African-Ameriaad Hispanic ethnicities as well as Caucasian)dtoker 2014,
brings additional risks with the costs of developimepublic relations and marketing communicatiomkliag to
overhead costs. There is a risk that the forecastadase in uptake for BREVAGeIus® does not occur to offset the
cost of this product introduction.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont.)

Risk management

In respect of the above risks, the Group takesoagtive approach to risk management. The Boaresjsonsible for ensuring

that risks and opportunities are identified onnaety basis and that the Group’s objectives andiities are aligned with those

risks and opportunities. The Board believes thitimportant for all Board members to be a péthis process and the Board
takes overall responsibility for the recognitiondamanagement of risk. Theverview of the compliance and control
mechanisms has been delegated to the Audit Conartiiteugh its Charter.

The Board believes that the Group is not yet Sefiity large to warrant the appointment of an inékauditor.
SHARE OPTIONS
Unissued shares under option

As at the date of this Report, there were 53,88 (fissued ordinary shares in the Company undéropDuring the

year ended 30 June 2016, a total of 33,736,11brptio acquire ordinary shares in the Company geaated. All

options were granted at nil cost. Refer Note 28h#attached financial statements for detailsroi#gg the outstanding
options.

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of optson

During the 2016 financial year no shares were dsisea result of the exercise of options. No optimave been exercised
since the end of the financial year. During th&@&@€@inancial year, a total of 4,125,000 optiong thead been issued to
employees lapsed due to forfeiture. Option holdersiot have any right, by virtue of their optiotts participate in any
share issue of the Company or any related bodycaig

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFI CERS

During the financial year, the Company paid a premin respect of a contract insuring the Directord Officers of the
Company and any related body corporate againsibditly incurred in his or her capacity as a Diceabr Officer to the
extent permitted by th€orporations Act 2001 The contract of insurance prohibits disclosdre nature of the insurance
provided and the amount of the premium. The Compes agreed to indemnify the current and formeed@rs and
Executive Officers against all liabilities to othgersons that may arise from their position asdbars or Officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries, except where to deositd be prohibited by law.
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GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2016 Financial Report

REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

This Remuneration Report outlines the Director Brecutive remuneration arrangements of Geneticriabies Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectivelye “Group”) in accordance with the requiremerftthe Corporations
Act 2001and its Regulations. For the purposes of thisoReKey Management Personnel (*KMP”) of the Graane
defined as those persons having authority and medgtity for planning, directing and controllinge major activities of
the Company and the Group, directly or indiredtigjuding any Director (whether executive or ndtjie parent company,
and includes executives in the Group who meetriteria, as set out below, receiving the highestueeration.

For the purposes of this Report, the term “Exeelitancompasses the Group’s Chief Executive OffiCéief Financial
Officer, Scientific Director, Quality and Busine§perations Director, Vice President Sales & Marigtand Senior
Medical Director. For details regarding changekKegy Management Personnel during the period fradulg 2015 to the
date of this Report, please refer to the notdseafoiot of the Remuneration Table.

Details of Directors and Key Management Personnelsaat balance date

Directors Executives

Dr Malcolm R. BrandorfNon-Executive Chairman) Mr Kevin Fischer(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive Director Ms Diana Newpor{Quality and Business Operations Director)

& Chief Executive Officer) Dr Richard Allman(Scientific Director)

Mr Grahame Leonard ANNon-Executive) Mr Chris SaundergVice President Sales & Marketing, Phenogen
Dr Lindsay WakefieldNon-Executive) Sciences Inc.)

Dr Paul KasiarfNon-Executive) Dr Susan GrosESenior Medical Director, Phenogen Sciences Inc.)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is made up of a majofiipdependent non-executive directors. The Cotemils, amongst
other things, responsible for determining and meivig remuneration arrangements for the Directdrs,Ghief Executive
Officer and the Senior Leadership Team.

As at the date of this report, the compositiorhefRemuneration Committee is:

Dr Lindsay Wakefield — Chairman of the Committee
Dr Paul Kasian
Mr Eutillio Buccilli

As an executive, Mr Buccilli does not take partigliberations pertaining to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropsatef the nature and amount of remunerationtpdidrectors and
Executives on a periodic basis by reference tovaelkeemployment market conditions, with the oveddjective of
ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the teterof a high quality Board and Senior Leaderdream.

Remuneration strategy

The performance of the Company depends upon tHityopfats Directors and Executives. To prospgbee Company must
attract, motivate and retain appropriately skillcectors and Executives.

To this end, the Company embodies the followinggiples in its remuneration framework:

» provide competitive rewards to attract high callBrecutives;

» wherever possible, link Executive rewards to tleation of shareholder value;

» ensure that a portion of an Executive’s remunerdsidat risk”; and

> establish appropriate, demanding performance aifdtevariable Executive remuneration.

The remuneration strategy is recommended by theuReration Committee and approved by the Board.
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GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2016 Financial Report

REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Remuneration structure

In accordance with best practice corporate govesahe structure of Non-Executive Director anddtitiee remuneration
is separate and distinct.

The key performance indicators applicable for ak&itives are quantifiable and the methods of reasent are defined.
Potential levels of remuneration are linked to epelformance indicator based on the pretext th#tefperformance
indicators as defined are met then the businessiaik more likely achieved certain key financiaktrategic objectives.
In addition to the various key performance indicaithat are used to assess the performance oEs@clutive, the overall
financial performance of the Company is also takém consideration when determining both base segéremuneration
and short term incentive payments for those indiisl

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Objective

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneratioteatlavhich provides the Company with the abilibyattract and retain
Directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurriagost which is acceptable to shareholders.

Structure

The Company’s Constitution and the Listing Rulesttud Australian Securities Exchange specify that dlggregate
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors shall btedrined from time to time by a General Meetinglodreholders. An
amount not exceeding the amount determined is theided between the Directors as agreed. The mastnt

determination was made at the 2007 Annual Geneegtikly, when shareholders approved an aggregatemegation not
exceeding $500,000 per year.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought tqppeweed by shareholders and the manner in whighadpportioned
amongst Directors are reviewed annually.

Each Non-Executive Director receives a fee foringras a Director of the Company. No additionakfare paid to any
Director for serving on a sub-committee of the Blo&aence all fees disclosed on page 16 are basbyamture.

Executive remuneration

Objective

The Group aims to reward Executives with a level mix of remuneration which is commensurate witkirtpositions and
responsibilities within the Group and so as to:

» reward Executives for Group and individual perfoncgagainst targets set by reference to suitabiehibearks;
> align the interests of Executives with those ofghareholders; and
» ensure that the total remuneration paid is conipetity market standards.

Structure

The remuneration paid to Executives is set witkrefce to prevailing market levels and compristsea remuneration
comprising base salary and superannuation, vasbod-term incentives (which are linked to agreexy Rerformance
Indicators (“KPIs”"), as described below under thading of Variable remuneration), and a long-teption component.

Fixed remuneration

Objective

The Remuneration Committee oversees the settirixedf remuneration on an annual basis. The processists of a
review of Company, divisional and individual perfance, relevant comparative remuneration in th&eband internally
and, where appropriate, external advice on polaies practices. The members of the Committee hawess to external
advice independent of Management.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Fixed remuneration (cont.)

Structure

Fixed remuneration consists of some or all of dilefing components:

> base salary;

» non-monetary benefits which can include a motoickefallowance, etc.; and
» superannuation benefits, which includes employatritmutions.

With the exception of the employer contributionsstgerannuation, Executives are given some fléxilid decide the
composition of their total fixed remuneration ahé &llocation between cash and other benefitss ifitended that the
manner of payment chosen will be optimal for trepient without creating any additional cost foe @Broup.

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually with rafieeeto individual performance, market benchmarksnidividual roles
and the overall financial performance of the GroApy changes to the fixed remuneration of Exeedtiare first approved
by the Remuneration Committee.

All employee remuneration is evaluated on a redodesis using a set of variables and taking into@aicthe addition of

the statutory superannuation contribution. An s@®ent of existing base salaries is made annusihg Lcomparisons
against independent market data which providesrimdtion on salaries and other benefits paid forpamable roles within

the biotech and pharmaceutical industries, usiitd tharty salary survey data. Annual performaredemws with each

employee are based on a rating system which istosassess his or her eligibility for salary inges Other qualitative
factors, including the specialised knowledge amkearnce of the individual and the difficulty optacing that person, are
also taken into account when considering salanystialients.

Variable remuneration

Objective

The objective of variable remuneration is to:

» align the interests of Executives with those ofshalders;

> link Executive rewards to the achievement of stjiatgoals and performance of the Company; and
» ensure that the total remuneration paid by the Goys competitive by market standards.

Short Term Incentive (“STI")

STl is an annual plan that applies to Executives @her senior employees that is based on therpaface of both the
Company and the individual during a given finangiear. STI ranges vary depending on the role,orespilities and
deliverables achieved by each individual. Actulll @ayments granted to the relevant employee \eflethd on the extent
to which the pre-agreed specific targets are mttinva financial year. Specific targets are queitie with the agreed
method of measurement defined at the beginningeofihancial year. The ongoing performance offkecutive or senior
employee is evaluated regularly during the perforceacycle.

Group objectives, and their relative weighting, walepending on the position and responsibility td tespective
individual, but in respect of the year ended 32016 include, amongst other things, the achientoie

» achieving or exceeding revenue targets;

» achieving targets for cost reduction or efficiegeyns;

» contributing to business growth and expansion; and

» performance or the delivery of results which excageed targets.

These measures are chosen as they represent thirikeng for the short term success of the busiaess provide a
framework for delivering long term value. Persomadl operating objectives vary according to the asld responsibility
of the Executive and include objectives such asiceerdelivery to customers, project delivery, coiampte outcomes,
intellectual property management and various stafiagement and leadership objectives.

Achievement of an individual's targets or objecsive documented and assessed by both the indivaddathis or her direct
manager. The individual will participate in an aahperformance review and must provide evidendbebbjectives that
he or she has delivered during the period undéewevEach objective is then rated on an achievésmale. Depending
on the aggregate of the ratings, the individual treligible to receive an STI payment.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Variable remuneration (cont.)

STI payments, if any, are generally paid in Auguseptember of each year subject to the complefidime performance
review process and the receipt of a satisfactdiiygia The Board conducts this process in the oatiee CEO.

Long Term Incentive (“LTI")

The objective of the Group’s LTI arrangements isaward Executives and senior employees in a mahaerligns their
remuneration with the creation of shareholder veafts such, significant LTI grants are generaillyonade to Executives
who are able to influence the generation of shagdehavealth and have an impact on the Group’s teng profitability.
There are no specific performance hurdles, apanh fcertain vesting provisions, in respect of thd gfiants made to
Executives. Options with a vesting period alsoeses a retention tool and may reduce the likehafohigh performing
Executives and senior employees being targetedhgy oompanies.

LTI grants to Executives and senior employees afwated in the form of options over unissued aadinshares in the
Company which are granted under the terms and wonsliof the Company’s Employee Option Plan. SeteE&xecutives
who contribute significantly to the long term ptability of the Company are invited to participatehe Employee Option
Plan. The remuneration value of these grantsvane is determined with reference to the natutbeoindividual’s role,

as well as his or her individual potential and gpeperformance.

The options are granted at no cost, have an appadailife of 4.5 years and vest;

¢ when the 3 month volume weighted average price (\AVAt which the shares of the Company must bentgaain
the ASX reach agreed on values, or

* inthree equal tranches after 12, 24 and 36 mdrahsthe date on which they are granted.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, a net shaegHpayments expense/ (credit) of $50,239 (2015588% was incurred
by the Company in respect of all options which pealiously been granted to Executives and othéosemployees.

In cases where an Executive ceases employmenttpribe vesting of his or her options, the optiares forfeited after a
prescribed period if they have not been exercidéte prescribed period ranges from two to six mantlepending on the
circumstances under which they left the Compary, resignation, retirement, termination or death.the event of a
change of control of the Company, the performarereog end date will be brought forward to the daft¢he change of
control and awards will vest over this shorteneatbple

The following table shows the key performance iattics for the Group over the past five financiargeended 30 June.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
$ $ $ $ $

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners
of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,458,965)| (8,810,170)| (10,125,197)| (9,298,367)| (5,287,523)
Basic earnings per share (cents) (0.49) (082) 6)1.7 (1.97) (1.15)
Increase/(decrease) in share price (32.1)% (22.2)% (62.1)% (20.8)% (42.9)%
Total Key Management Personnel
(KMP)incentives (being STl and LTI) as a (2.36)% (1.30)% (0.90)% (1.36)% (2.16)%
percentage of profit/(loss) for the year
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)
Variable remuneration (cont.)

Relative proportion of fixed vs variable remuneryatexpense

Fixed remuneration At risk — STI Atrisk — LTI *
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Executive director
Eutillio Buccilli 76% 7% 18% 23% 6% -
Other KMP of the
group
Luisa Ashdown 100% 98% - - - 2%
Diana Newport 99% 90% - 10% 1% -
Dr Richard Allman 93% 92% 6% 8% 1% -
Brian Manuel 100% 100% - - - -
Alison Mew - 84% - 16% - -
Mark J. Ostrowski - 100% - - - *x
Kevin Fischer 83% - 11% - 6% -
Chris Saunders 81% - 15% - 4% -
Susan Gross 100% - - - - -

* Since the long-term incentives are provided esiglely by way of options, the percentages discladed reflect the
value of remuneration consisting of options, basethe value of options expensed during the ye&erd/applicable,
the expenses include negative amounts for expeesessed during the year due to a failure to satisf vesting
conditions.

** Percentage not disclosed as the total amouTafand/or LTI remuneration expense was negativé relevant
period.

*** Employment is by way of a consulting agreemeRémuneration is by way of a fixed monthly consudiafee for service

provided on a part time basis.
Employment contracts

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr Eutillio Buccillis employed under an ongoing contract dated 25uaepr2015 which
has the following key terms and conditions:

> Base salary of $307,500 plus statutory superaromuatintributions as prescribed under the Supersionu@uarantee
legislation;

» STI payment equivalent to a maximum of 30% of lsedary based on achievement of Key Performancedtais, as
agreed with the Board from time to time.

> Notice period of three months; and

» The contract may be terminated at any time witmatice if serious misconduct has occurred. Whenmibation with
cause occurs, he is only entitled to receive tloatign of remuneration which is fixed and only upthe date of
termination. In this instance, all entitementdath STI and LTI are forfeited and would lapse.

The key provisions contained in the employmentreats for other Key Management Personnel in ofiicne date of this
Report are:

> the Executive receives a base salary and statstmgrannuation contributions, as prescribed utdeBtiperannuation
Guarantee legislation, together with certain STynpants based on achievement of Key Performancedimis, as
agreed with the Chief Executive Officer from tinotitne;

» the Executive may resign from higer position and terminate the contract by givipdgaithree months written notice;
» the Company may terminate the contract by providimgp three months written notice or paymentdn bf notice; and
» the Company may terminate the contract withouiceati the event of serious misconduct. In thitamse, entitlements

to both STl and LTI payments are forfeited and laifise.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Employment contracts (cont.)

There are no employment contracts in place withNmy-Executive Director of the Company.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”)

Short-term Post-employment  Other long-  Share-based
Name and title of Year Salaryffees Other  Superanndian”  term benefits Options Totals
Non-Executive Directors $ $ $ $ $
Dr Malcolm R. Brandon 2016 89,303 - 8,484 - - 97,787
Non-Executive Chairman 2015 87,125 - 8,277 - - 95,402
Grahame Leonard AM 2016 54,967 5,222 - - 60,189
2015 53,626 - 5,094 - - 58,720
Dr Paul Kasian 2016 54,967 5,222 - 60,189
2015 53,626 - 5,094 - - 58,720
Dr Lindsay Wakefield . 2016 54,967 - 5,222 - - 60,189
2015 41,251 - 3,919 - - 45,170
David CarteP 2016 - - - - - -
2015 18,907 - 1,796 - - 20,703
Dr Mervyn Cass$ 2016 - - - - - -
2015 22,344 - 2,123 - - 24,467
Prof lan McKenzi€¢ 2016 - - - - - -
2015 21,554 - 2,048 - - 23,602
Totals 2016 254,204 24,150 - 278,354
2015 298,433 - 28,351 - - 328,

Notes pertaining to changes during the year:

1. Appointed to the Board in September 2014.

2. Appointed to the Board in September 2014 subsetyuegdsed to be a Director in January 2015.

3. Resigned from the Board effective November 2014.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”) (ont.)

Post- Other Share-
Short-term employment  |ong-term based  Termination

Name and title of Year Salary/fees  Other  Superanndi@n” benefit§  Options™*  benefits Totals

Executives $ $ $ $ $ $

Eutillio Buccilli 4 2016 307,500 83,800 32,062 15,51926,623 - 465,504
Executive Director & 2015 238,090 80,000 27,369 8,085 - - 353,544
Chief Executive
Officer

Luisa Ashdowr? 2016 6,856 - 2,964 (16,980) - 53,795 46,635
Director, Licensing & 2015 163,947 - 15,575 (20,672) 2,927 - 1B1,7
IP

Diana Newport 2016 103,343 - 11,242 (298) 1,373 - 6ao6,
Quiality & Ops. 2015 154,350 20,000 16,088 2,793 - - 193,231
Director

Dr Richard Allmarf 2016 158,875 11,900 16,518 8,317 2,747 - 198,357
Scientific Director 2015 145,965 15,812 15,084 908, - - 196,769

Brian Manuel 2016 66,667 - 6,333 4,263 - - 77,263
Chief Financial 2015 8,333 - 792 737 - - 9,862
Officer

Alison J. Mew? 2016 - - - - - - -
Ex-Chief Executive 2015 137,164 25,000 15,401 (20,757) - - 155,80
Officer

Mark J. Ostrowsk 2016 - - - - - - -
Ex-US Senior VP 2015 170,631 - - 1,052  (28,886) - 142,797
Sales and Marketing

Kevin Fischer' 2016 113,808 16,700 10,812 5,454 9,351 - 156,12
Chief Financial 2015 - - - - - - -
Officer

Chris Saunder¥ 2016 183,760 37,629 - 12,277 9,351 - 243,017
US-VP Sales & 2015 - - - - - - -
Marketing

Susan Gros¥ 2016 5,944 - - - - - 5,944
US-Senior Medical 2015 - - - - - - -
Director

Sub-totals for 2016 946,753 150,029 79,931 28,552 49,445 53,795 308K05

Executives

2015 1,018,480 140,812 90,309 (8,854) (25,959) - ,214,788

Total remuneration of 2016 1,200,957 150,029 8,0 28,552 49,445 53,795 1,586,859

Key Management

Personnel 2015 1,316,913 140,812 118,660 (8,854) (25,959) - 1,541,572

Notes pertaining to changes during the year:

4. Mr Buccilli was appointed to the Chief ExecutivefiGdr role in February 2015 prior to which he wias Chief Financial Officer.
“Other” includes a bonus paid or payable in the amof $83,800 at the discretion of the Board.

5. Ms Ashdown ceased to be an executive with effechfjuly 2015.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel (“*KMP”) (ont.)

“Other” includes a bonus paid or payable to Dr Alliin the amount of $11,900 at the discretion eBbard.

Mr Manuel held the role of Chief Financial Offiaantil his resignation in October 2015.

Ms Mew held the role of Chief Executive Officer liher resignation in December 2014.

Mr Ostrowski held the role of US Senior Vice PresidSales and Marketing until his resignation imuzay 2015.

. Mr Fischer was appointed to role of Chief FinanCGéicer in November 2015. “Other” includes a boipayable in the amount

of $ 16,700 at the discretion of the board.

Mr Saunders was appointed to the role of Vice BesgiSales & Marketing in November 2015. “Othecliudges a bonus payable
in the amount of $ 37,629 at the discretion ofttbard.

Dr Gross was engaged under a consulting agreemeantform the role of Senior Medical Director fdredhogen Sciences Inc
(USA) in June 2016. Remuneration is by way of adixnonthly consultancy fee for service providedguart time basis.

Referencing the previous two tables:

*  Post-employment benefits as per Corporati®egulation 2M.3.03(1) Item 7

** QOther long-term benefits as per CorporatioregRation 2M.3.03(1) Item 8

*** Equity settled share-based payments as per @atons Regulation 2M.3.03(1) Item 11

The details of those Executives nominated as Keydgament Personnel under section 300A oCibiporations Act 2001
have been disclosed in this Report. No other eyaplof the Company meet the definition of “Key sigement Personnel”
as defined iHAS 24 / (AASB 124) Related Party Disclospoessenior manager” as defined in tBerporations Act 2001

Options exercised, granted and forfeited as part aemuneration during the year ended 30 June 2016

Details of the options held by the Executives nated as Key Management Personnel during the yekdeB0 June
2016 are set out below. As at 30 June 2016, there Brexecutives and 5 employees who held optiaishad been granted
under the Company’s respective option plans.

Options Exercised

No options granted as equity compensation beneflExecutives were exercised during the year.

Options Granted

During the 2016 financial year 31,736,111 optioesergranted as equity compensation benefits toufixes.

Options Exercise Fair value Final
Name of Executive Granted price per option vesting date
Eutillio Buccilli *. 8,328,125 $0.02 $0.0161 24 Nov 2020
3,131,944 $002 $0.0139 24 Nov 2020
2,776,042 $002 $0.0100 24 Nov 2020
Dr. Richard Allmarf . 2,925,000 $0.02 $0.0112 31 Mar 2021
1,100,000 $0.02 $0.0094 31 Mar 2021
975,000 $0.02 $0.0065 31 Mar 2021
Diana Newport 1,462,500 $0.02 $0.0112 31 Mar 2021
550,000 $0.02 $0.0094 31 Mar 2021
487,500 $0.02 $0.0065 31 Mar 2021
Kevin Fischer 2,925,000 $0.02 $0.0161 24 Nov 2020
1,100,000 $0.02 $0.0139 24 Nov 2020
975,000 $0.02 $0.0100 24 Nov 2020
Chris Saunders 2,925,000 $0.02 $0.0161 24 Nov 2020
1,100,000 $0.02 $0.0139 24 Nov 2020
975,000 $0.02 $0.0100 24 Nov 2020
Totals 31,736,111

18



GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 2016 Financial Report

REMUNERATION REPORT (cont.)

Options exercised, granted and forfeited as part ofemuneration during the year ended 30 June 2016
(cont.)

Total of 14,236,111 options granted in November52@dsting in 3 tranches
Total of 5,000,000 options Granted in March 201étivg in 3 tranches
Total of 2,500,000 options Granted in March 201étiveg in 3 tranches
Total of 5,000,000 options Granted in November 2@4%ing in 3 tranches
Total of 5,000,000 options Granted in November 2@4%ing in 3 tranches

akrwNRE

The options granted to Executives during 2016 asgcesable at any time after the date on whichQipgion meets its
vesting conditions, namely the 3 month volume wieidtaverage price (VWAP) of shares as traded oA8¥¢ as follows
(subject to any adjustments in the vesting conultas contained in the option terms):

Tranche Number Vesting Condition — VWAP Price
1 $0.05
2 $0.10
3 $0.20

Fair values at grant date have been determinegémdiently using a Monte Carlo Simulation method thkes into
account the exercise price, the VWAP hurdle (priece8 month price), the term of the option, thershaice at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlyingrehahe expected divided yield and the risk-freerast rate for the term of
the option.

Options Forfeited

During the 2016 financial year 1,500,000 optiore/musly granted as equity compensation benefiEazutives were
forfeited. These options were forfeited due togeation.

Number Fair value Final
Name of Executive forfeited per option vesting date
Luisa Ashdowrf (500,000) $0.1010 31 March 2016
(1,000,000) $0.1053 31 July 2016
Totals (1,500,000)

6. Granted in April & September 2011 respectively

The options that were forfeited during the yearemssued under the Employee Share plan and vesttdee equal

tranches after 12 months, 24 months and 36 months the date of grant, respectively. Fair valuethese options at
grant date were independently determined usingaekBbcholes option pricing model that takes intmoaot the exercise
price, the term of the option, the share pricerabigdate and expected price volatility of the ulyitey share, the expected
divided yield and the risk-free interest rate fue term of the option.

Options exercised, granted and forfeited as part aemuneration during the year ended 30 June 2015

During the 2015 financial year 2,500,000 optionsengranted as equity compensation benefits to Hixesy all of which
were subsequently forfeited due to resignation.
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Option holdings of Key Management Personnel

30 June 2016
Financial
Vesting as at year end year Fair
Name of option in which Value yet
holder Opening Number of options Closing Not
balance Granted Exercised Lapsed balance Exercidab exercisable options to vest
vest $
Executive
Eutillio Buccilli - 14,236,111 - - 14,236,111 - 286,111 * 205,377
Luisa Ashdown 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - - -
Luisa Ashdown 500,000 - - (500,000) - - - -
Diana Newport - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 * 24,719
Richard Allman - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,00 * 49,438
Kevin Fischer - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 * 72,133
Chris Saunders - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,00 * 72,133
Totals 1,500,000 31,736,111 - (1,500,000) 31,736,11 - 31,736,111 423,800
* Options vest and are exercisable at any time #feedate on which they meet the vesting conditamdescribed above
Option holdings of Key Management Personnel 30 Jur2015
Financial
Vesting as at year end year Fair

Name of option in which Value yet
holder Opening Number of options Closing Not

balance Granted Exercised Lapsed balance Exercidab  exercisable options to vest

vest $
Executive
Mark J. Ostrowski 2,400,000 - - (2,400,000) - - - -
Mark J. Ostrowski - 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - - -
Luisa Ashdown 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 2015 -
Luisa Ashdown 500,000 - - - 500,000 500,000 - 2014 -
Totals 3,900,000 2,500,000 - (4,900,000) 1,500,000 1,500,000 - -
** Mr Ostrowski held the role of KMP until his regiation in January 15
Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel
30 June 2016
Shares held in Genetic Opening Number of shares Aaired on Closing
Technologies Limited balance Bought Sold exercisé o balance
convertible notes

Director
Dr Malcolm Brandon - - - - -
Mr Eutillio Buccilli - - - - -
Mr Grahame Leonard AM 2,000,000 4,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Dr Paul Kasian 256,410 - - - 256,41
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 15,325,263 - - 15,325,263
Executive
Brian Manuel - - - - -
Dr. Richard Allman - - - - -
Diana Newport - - - - -
Luisa AshdowdA 12,500 - - - 12,500
Kevin Fischer - - - - -
Chris Saunders - - - - -
Totals 17,594,173 4,000,000 - - 21,594,173

1. Mr Manuel was a KMP from the start of the year wdber 2015.
2. Ms Ashdown was a KMP from the start ofykar to July 2015

There were no loans to/from Key Management Persatumimg the financial years ending 2016 and 2015.

End of Remuneration Report
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AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Auditor independence

The Directors of Genetic Technologies Limited heseeived an independence declaration from Pricel@iseCoopers,
the Company’s auditor, as reproduced immediatdligviing the Directors’ Declaration on page 64 & ffinancial Report.
Non-audit services

During the financial year, the following fees wead or payable to the auditors of Genetic TechgietoLimited and its
subsidiaries in respect of both audit and non-asgitices:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Audit and assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of:
Audit * 334,560 558,360
Other audit firms in respect of:
Audit of the Financial Reports of subsidiaries 5,868 2,539
340,428 560,899

Total remuneration in respect of audit services
1 Audit fees consist of services that would noryriadl provided in connection with statutory & regoly filings or
engagements, including services that generally thrdyindependent accountant can reasonably prosicdh as comfort
letters

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Company is not aware of any breaches of anyaemuental regulation during the 2016 financialryea

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Cogtimns (Rounding in Financial/ Director's reportastrument
2016/191, issued by the Australian and Securitieslavestments Commission, relating to the “rougdiff” of amounts
in the Directors’ Report. Amounts in the Directd®eport have been rounded off in accordance il €lass order to the
nearest dollar.

PROCEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No proceedings have been brought or intervened ém dehalf of the Company with leave to the Conder section 237
of theCorporations Act 2001
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DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

Meeting attendances

The number of meetings of Directors (including theetings of Sub-Committees of the Board) held dutiire financial
year, and the number of such meetings attendeddby@irector, were as follows:

Directors’ meetings Audit Committee meetings Reemation Committee
meetings
Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended igible

Dr Malcolm Brandon 12 13 - - - -
Mr Eutillio Buccilli 12 13 - - 2 2
Mr Grahame Leonard 12 13 4 4 - -
A.M.

Dr Paul Kasian 13 13 2 2
Dr Lindsay Wakefield 12 13 2 2

Sub-committee membership
As at the date of this Report, the compositiorhef$ub-Committees are:

Mr Grahame Leonard AM — Chairnaduthe Committee
Dr Paul Kasian
Dr Lindsay Wakefield

Audit Committee:

Remuneration Committee: Dr Lindsay Wakefield — @hain of the Committee

Dr Paul Kasian
Mr Eutillio Buccilli

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Dinec

Al Liode

DR. MALCOLM R. BRANDON
Chairman

Melbourne, 29 August 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Genetic Technologies Limited (the “Company”) angl Board are committed to achieving the leading dstads of
corporate governance.

Reference is made to the revised Corporate Govegrarinciples and Recommendations issued and defrize time to
time by the ASX Corporate Governance Council. Buard believes that all concepts of the reviseadiies and
Recommendations have been satisfied, however thedBs realistic with respect to the relative sirel nature of the
Company and have implemented the Recommendaticosditgly. The Company endeavours to ensure excepto the
guidelines do not have negative impact on theihesests of shareholders.

While in most respects the Company complies with flecommendations, it is recognised that the deredat and
implementation of policies and practices is an amggrocess that evolves with the needs of thenbkasi and its
stakeholders.

ASX Listing Rule 4.10.3 requires an entity thainisluded in the official list as an ASX Listing toclude in its annual
report either a corporate governance statemenirteats the requirements of that rule or the URthefpage on its website
where such a statement is located.

The Company therefore advises that the currentocai® governance statement and a summary of its ammporate
governance practices may be found via the folloviimgon the Company’s website:

http://www.gtgcorporate.com/investor-centre/corp@igovernance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LO SS)

For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated

Notes 2016 2015
$ $

Revenue from operations — genetic testing services 824,586 2,011,918
Less: cost of sales 4 (743,060) (891,243)
Gross profit from operations — genetic testing sefees 81,526 1,120,675
Other revenue 5 300,548 1,027,151
Other income 6 492,037 370,557
Gain on disposal of business 7 - 1,396,798
Selling and marketing expenses (3,186,497) (4,504,299)
General and administrative expenses (3,429,357) (4,222,988)
Licensing, patent and legal costs (103,581) (435,418)
Laboratory and research and development costs (2,584,752) (2,851,665)
Finance costs (28,889) (264,694)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial liabilitiesfair value through profit/loss - 349,246
Fair value loss on ImmunAid option fee - (795,533)
Loss from operations before income tax expense (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Income tax expense 9 - -
Loss for the year (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Other comprehensive profit
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange gains on translation of controlled foreigarations 1,307,219 414,005
Other comprehensive profit for the year, net of tax 1,307,219 414,005
Total comprehensive loss for the year (7,151,746) (8,396,165)
Loss for the year is attributable to:
Owners of Genetic Technologies Limited (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Total loss for the year (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Total comprehensive loss for the year is attributale to:
Owners of Genetic Technologies Limited (7,151,746) (8,396,165)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (7,151,746) (8,396,165)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the Compan
and from operations:
Basic loss per share (cents per share) 10 (0.49) (0.82)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) 10 (0.49) (0.82)

The above consolidated statement of comprehem&ivene/ (loss) should be read in conjunction withahcompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2016

Consolidated

Notes 2016 2015
$ $

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 11,179,687 18,341,357
Trade and other receivables 12 630,773 714,951
Prepayments and other assets 13 320,610 509,788
Total current assets 12,131,070 19,566,096
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 550,139 417,595
Intangible assets 15 608,477 736,041
Total non-current assets 1,158,616 1,153,636
Total assets 13,289,686 20,719,732
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 837,983 1,180,256
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss 19 - 25,000
Provisions 17 494,206 529,907
Total current liabilities 1,332,189 1,735,163
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 17 74,308 25,321
Total non-current liabilities 74,308 25,321
Total liabilities 1,406,497 1,760,484
Net assets 11,883,189 18,959,248
EQUITY
Contributed equity 20 115,272,576 115,247,128
Reserves 21 6,054,861 4,697,403
Accumulated losses 22 (109,444,248) (100,985,283)
Total equity 11,883,189 18,959,248

The above consolidated balance sheet should beimeaahjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated

Notes 2016 2015
$ $

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Receipts from customers 1,482,970 2,855,599
Payments to suppliers and employees (9,276,907) (12,583,957)
Interest received 67,099 39,951
Interest and finance charges paid - (3,121)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 11 (7,726,838) (9,691,528)
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 17,13 57,119
Purchases of plant and equipment (303,462) (192,592)
Proceeds from the sale of business - 2,100,895
Net cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities (296,331) 1,965,422
Cash flows (used in)/ from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shares - 23,289,927
Equity transaction costs (1,654) (2,572,664)
Proceeds from borrowings - 2,150,000
Net cash flows(used in)/ from financing activities (1,654) 22,867,263
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivaten (8,024,823) 15,141,157
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18,341,357 2,831,085
Net foreign exchange difference 863,153 369,115
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11 11,179,687 18,341,357

The above consolidated statement of cash flowdadheuead in conjunction with the accompanyingesot
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated

Accumulated

Balance at 30 June 2014

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive profit

Total comprehensive incoméloss

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Contributions of equity (net of
transaction costs)

Value of shares issued on conversion
of convertible notes

Share-based payments

Transaction costs on placement of
shares

Balance at 30 June 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive profit

Total comprehensive loss

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Value of shares issued on conversion
of convertible notes

Share-based payments

Balance at 30 June 2016

Contributed Reserves | Total
equity osses Equity
$ $ $ $
90,080,492 3,922,140 (92,175,113) 1,827,519
- - (8,41/m) (8,810,170
- 414,005 - 414,005
- 414,005 (8,810,170) (8,396,165)
20,659,527 - - 20,659,527
4,507,109 - - 4,507,109
- 303,522 - 303,522
- 57,736 - 57,736
25,166,636 361,258 - 25.527,894
115,247,128 4,697,403 (100,985,283) 18,959,248
- - ,4688,965) (8,458,965)
- 1,307,219 - 1,307,219
- 1,307,219 (8,458,965) (7,151)746
25,448 - - 25,448
- 50,239 - 50,239
25,448 50,239 - 75,687
115,272,576 6,054,861 (109,444,248) 11,883,189

The above consolidated statement of changes ityeshould be read in conjunction with the accomjgamnyotes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Financial Report of Genetic Technologies Lithifne “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2046 authorised for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the Directoreed®9 August 2016. Genetic Technologies Limiteth¢orporated in Australia
and is a company limited by shares. The Diredtak® the power to amend and reissue the finaneiginients.

The Company’s ordinary shares are publicly tradethe Australian Securities Exchange under the sy@BG and, via Level II
American Depositary Receipts, on the NASDAQ Capitatket under the ticker GENE.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Basis of preparation

This general purpose Financial Report has beerapgdpn accordance with Australian Accounting Stéadsl, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Aeting Standards Board and tBerporations Act 2001.

Compliance with IFRS

The Financial Report complies with Australian Accting Standards as issued by the Australian Acoogint
Standards Board and International Financial Rempi&tandards (“IFRS”) as issued by the Internatidwaounting
Standards Board.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared tmeldristorical cost conventicexcept for financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) whiare measured at fair value.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires ube of certain critical accounting estimates.aldb requires
Management to exercise its judgement in the prooésspplying the Group’s accounting policies. Taeas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complgxir areas where assumptions and estimates élctd the
financial statementsye disclosed in Note 3.

Going concern

For the year ending 30 June 2016, the Group indwrtetal comprehensive loss of $7,151,746 (20833%6,165)
and net cash outflow from operations of $7,726,@885: $9,691,528). As at 30 June 2016 the Compaluytotal
cash and cash equivalents of $11,179,687.

During the 2017 financial year, the Directors expecreased cash outflows from operations as thepg2oy
continues to invest resources in expanding thearebe& development and sales & marketing activitiesupport
of BREVAGermlus®in the U.S. As a result of these expected caditowaus, the Directors intend to raise new
equity funding within the next twelve months in erdo ensure the Company continues to hold adedgpaats of
available cash resources to meet creditors and otimemitments.

The continuing viability of the Company and itsl&pito continue as a going concern and meet itgssland
commitments as they fall due is dependent on tligfaetory completion of the planned equity raising

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing, quanor the ability to raise additional funds via tissuance of
new equity, there is a material uncertainty thay west significant doubt on the Company’s abildycbntinue as a
going concern and therefore, that it may be un#@blealise its assets and discharge its liabilitethe normal
course of business. However, the Directors beltbae the Company will be successful in the aboedtens and
accordingly, have prepared the financial repora@oing concern basis. As such no adjustmentsliese made to
the financial statements relating to the recovéitalaind classification of the asset carrying antewor classification
of liabilities that might be necessary should tleen@any not be able to continue as a going concern.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( cont.)

(&) Basis of preparation (cont.)
Going Concern (cont.)
As a U.S. SEC registrant, the Company is requindthie its financial statements audited in accarelavith
Public Company Oversight Board ("PCAOB") standarBgferences in these IFRS financial statementsatters
that may cast significant doubt about the Compaatyility to continue as a going concern also raidastantial
doubt as contemplated by the PCAOB standards.

(b) New accounting standards and interpretations
() Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reprted in the current period (and/or prior period)
The group has not applied any new standards or dmemis for the first time for their annual repagtiperiod
commencing 1 July 2015.
(i) Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yeadopted
In respect of the year ended 30 June 2016, thepGras assessed all new Australian accounting stisydand the
IFRS equivalent, mandatory for adoption during terent year, noting no new standards which wowdeha
material effect on the disclosure in these findrati@ements. There has been no effect on thé araf loss or the
financial position of the Group. Certain new aating standards and interpretations have beenghdalithat are not
mandatory for 30 June 2016 reporting periods.
The Group’s and the parent entity’s assessmertieofripact of these new standards and interpretatfoset out
below.
Title of Standard | Summary and impact on Grouparfaial statements Application Application

date of the |date for Grou
standard for financial
year ending

AASB 9 Financia |AASB 9 Financial Instruments replaces AASB 139 addresses 1 January | 30 June 2019
Instruments and classification, measurement and derecognifidinancial 2018

assets and liabilities. It also addresses the mglgdraccounting
requirements, including changes to hedge effectisgntreatment ¢
hedging costs and risk components that can be Hedge

AASB 9 introduces a new expected loss impairmerdehthat will
require entities to account for expected crediédssat the time of
recognising the asset. The Group does not expeetdbption of the
new standard to have a material impact on its ifieestson and
measurement of the financial assets and liabildfets results on
adoption of the new impairment model.

The new standard will result in extended disclosumehe financial
statements. The Group has decided not to earlyt#d®pB 9.

AASB 15 AASB 15 provides a single, principles based fivepsinodel to be 1 January | 30 June 2019
Revenue from  |applied to all contracts with customers. The fitepps in the model 2018
Contracts with  |are as follows:

Customers 1

identify contracts with customers
2. identify the separate performance obligations
3. determine the transaction price of the contract

4. allocate the transaction price to each of the sépar
performance obligations, and

5. recognise the revenue as each performance oblgatio
satisfied.
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Guidance is provided on topics such as the pointhich
revenue is recognised, accounting for variable
consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining@ntract
and various related matters. The Group is assetiging
impact of the new standard on its revenue recamiti

policy.

AASB 16 Leases| AASB 16 will primarily affect thecarinting by lessees and will 1 January | 30 June 2020

(©

(d)

(€)

(f)

result in the recognition of almost all leasestmmtalance sheet. 2019
The standard removes the current distinction betveperating &

financing leases and requires recognition of aatg#ise right to use

the leased item) and financial liability to paytads for almost all of

the lease contracts. The accounting by lessorsevenywill not

significantly change

The new standard will result in extended disclosumehe financial
statements. The Group has decided not to earlyt#d®pB 16

There are no other standards that are not yettiefeand that are expected to have a material itlnpathe entity
in the current or future reporting periods and ame$eeable future transactions.

Principles of consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorpordte &ssets and liabilities of all subsidiaries ofn&ie
Technologies Limited (the “Company” or “Parent Eyifi as at 30 June 2016 and the results of all igidrges for
the year then ended. Genetic Technologies Limated its subsidiaries together are referred to im Bmancial
Report as the “Group” or the “Consolidated Entity”.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structuestdities) over which the group has control. Theug controls an
entity when the group is exposed to, or has rigghtsariable returns from its involvement withiretantity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its poweedirect the activities of the entity. Subsidiarge fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred ®®@roup. They are de-consolidated from the datiectimtrol ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreatjs@ts / losses on transactions between Group caegpane
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminatddss the transaction provides evidence of theaimmgnt of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subgekahave been changed where necessary to enswgistency with
the Group’s policies. Non-controlling intereststlire results and equity of subsidiaries are shapamstely in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomesatidlated balance sheet and consolidated statevhehénges in
equity, respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner cemnisisith the internal reporting provided to theefloperating
decision maker. The chief operating decision mak&io is responsible for allocating resources sssgssing the
performance of the operating segments, has begtifiele as the Chief Executive Officer.

Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity,r@éc Technologies Limited has been prepared osdhee basis as
the consolidated financial statements, exceptitivestments in subsidiaries are accounted for sttinathe financial

statements of Genetic Technologies Limited. Ldansubsidiaries are written down to their recovieralalue as at
balance date.

Foreign currency translation

The functional and presentation currency of Gen&tchnologies Limited and its Australian subsidiaris the
Australian dollar (AUD). Transactions in foreigareencies are initially recorded in the functiocalrency at the
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactMonetary assets and liabilities which are denatad in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rate of excharigg at the balance sheet date. All differenaestaken to the
statement of comprehensive income.
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(f)

(@)

(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)

Foreign currency translation (cont.)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms sibiidal cost in a foreign currency are translatsthg the
exchange rate ruling at the date of the initiahgection. Non-monetary items measured at fairevaiua foreign
currency are translated using the exchange raiag ai the date when the fair value was determiriBake functional
currencies of the Company’s three overseas sulisgl@re as follows:

GeneType AG — Swiss francs (CHF)
GeneType Corporation — United States dollars (USD)
Phenogen Sciences Inc. — United States dollars JUSD

As at the reporting date, the assets and lialsilitiethese subsidiaries are translated into thgeptation currency of
Genetic Technologies Limited at the rate of exckangling at the balance sheet date and the stateaien
comprehensive income is translated at the weightettage exchange rates for the period unless ghigt a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effdcthe rates prevailing on the transaction datesyliich case
income and expenses are translated at the daté®e diansactions. The exchange differences arisimghe
retranslation are recognised in other compreherisomme and taken directly to a separate compafeequity. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumutmount recognised in equity relating to thatipalar foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of congm&ke income.

Earnings per share (“EPS”)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profitibtitable to owners of the Company, excluding arstsof servicing
equity other than ordinary shares, by the weightetage number of ordinary shares outstanding gitini financial
year. Diluted EPS adjusts the figures used irdétermination of basic EPS to take into accountfter income tax
effect of interest and other financing costs asdediwith dilutive potential ordinary shares anel weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would have beertamdsg assuming the conversion of all dilutivegpdial ordinary
shares.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent that itolsapte that the economic benefits will flow to thtity and the
revenues can be reliably measured. Revenues eognised at the fair value of the consideratioreiked or
receivable net of the amounts of Goods and SerViegs The following recognition criteria must alse met before
revenue is recognised:

Genetic testing revenues

The Company operates facilities which provide gertesting services. The Company recognises revéom the
provision of these services when the services haga completed.

License fees, royalties and annuities received

The Company licenses the use of its patented getesthnologies. License fee income is recorddueepfront
where the Group has no future obligations or olerlicense term where the Group has future ohtigatbased on
the execution of a binding agreement. The Growgsdmt grant refunds to its customers. Royalties annuities
arising from the above licenses are recognised vélagned in accordance with the substance of theeagmt, in
cases where no future performance is requireddZtdmpany and collection is reasonably assured.

Interest received
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues theiraffective interest method.

Research and development tax incentive

The Australian government replaced the researchdamdlopment tax concession with research and al@vent
(R&D) tax incentive from 1 July 2011. The R&D tamcentive applies to expenditure incurred and the afs
depreciating assets in an income year commencingr @&fter 1 July 2011. A refundable tax offset vaikble to
eligible companies with an annual aggregate tumnof/ess than $20 million. Management has assdbge@roup’s
activities and expenditure to determine which eyl to be eligible under the incentive schemee Qroup accounts
for the R&D tax incentive as a government grane gtant is recognised as other income over thegeriwhich the
R&D expense is recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of options granted under an Empld@ption Plan is recognised as an employee bengfdrese with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair vatumeasured at grant date and recognized over $tiagy@eriod over
which all of the specified vesting conditions acelte satisfied. The fair value at grant date i®emened by
management with the assistance of an independamdryasing a Black-Scholes option pricing modebdvonte
Carlo simulation analysis. The total amount tekgeensed is determined by reference to the faiewaf the options
granted;

- including any market performance conditions (ehg.éntities share price)
- excluding the impact of any service and non-maplkeeformance vesting conditions (e.g. remainingrapleyee over
a specified time period)

The cumulative employee benefits expense recogaisedch reporting date until vesting date reflérthe extent to
which the vesting period has expired; and (ii) thenber of awards that, in the opinion of the Dexiof the Group,
will ultimately vest. This opinion is formed basewl the best information available at balance date.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are fiedgias a minimum an expense is recognised & iferms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense isgeised for any increase in the value of the traimaas a result of
the modification, as at the date of modificatioWhere appropriate, the dilutive effect of outstagdoptions is
reflected as additional share dilution in the cotapon of diluted earnings per share. The Commapylicy is to
treat the options of terminated employees as tarfes.

Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the perititisax payable on the current period’'s taxalterime based on
the national income tax rate for each jurisdiceoijusted by changes in deferred tax assets arilitiegbattributable
to temporary differences and unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated orbésts of the tax laws enacted or substantivelytedaat the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the mamy’s subsidiaries and associates operate andagenaxable
income. Management periodically evaluates posititaleen in tax returns with respect to situationswihich
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpietat It establishes provisions where appropriatettun basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using trebility method, on temporary differences arisimgtween the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgngunts in the consolidated financial statement®wever, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it@gigrom initial recognition of an asset or lialiiih a transaction other
than a business combination that, at the time eftidnsaction, affects neither accounting nor texplofit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax regesl (aws) that have been enacted or substantizéigted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply wkerelated deferred income tax asset is realisedeodeferred
income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax dss@e recognised for deductible temporary diffeesrand unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxabieoants will be available to utilise those tempordifferences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductibdpdrary differences and unused tax losses oitlisiprobable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilikese temporary differences and losses. Defegsetabilities and
assets are not recognised for temporary differebeéseen the carrying amount and tax bases of timeggs in
controlled entities where the parent entity is @bleontrol the timing of the reversal of the temgpy differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reeis the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assetdiabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offsgtrent tax assets and liabilities and when therds tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Currentassets and tax liabilities are offset where th#yehas a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends eitheretiles on a net basis, or to realise the asset etti¢ she liability
simultaneously. Current and deferred tax balamdtgthutable to amounts recognised directly in ggare also
recognised directly in equity. Current and defétex is recognised in profit or loss, except ®éxtent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive incomdirectly in equity. In this case, the tax iscatecognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equiggpectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)
Income tax (cont.)
Tax consolidation legislation

Genetic Technologies Limited (*GTG”) and its whetiywned Australian-resident subsidiaries have impleted the
tax consolidation legislation. The head entity,GzBnd the subsidiaries in the tax consolidatedig@ccount for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. Tkeesamounts are measured as if each entity inathednsolidated
group continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer owitsright.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax ams, GTG also recognises the current tax as$atslities and the
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax lcmsédax credits assumed from subsidiaries in thedasolidated
group. Assets or liabilities arising under taxdung agreements with the tax consolidated ent#resrecognised as
amounts receivable from or payable to other entitidhe Group. Any difference between the amoasssimed and
amounts receivable or payable under the tax fundgrgements are recognised as a contribution tdigtibution
from) wholly-owned tax subsidiaries.

Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisediimetaofiount of Goods and Services Tax (GST) exsbpte the
GST incurred on a purchase of goods and servicestigecoverable from the taxation authority, inickhcase the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisitibthe asset or as part of the expense item pigcalple; and
receivables and payables are stated with the anod@®ET included. The net amount of GST recoverdfam, or

payable to, the taxation authority is included ag pf receivables or payables in the balance sh@ash flows are
included in the cash flow statement on a grossshasil the GST component arising from investing farahcing

activities, which is recoverable from / payablédtie taxation authority, are classified as operatash flows.

Withholding tax

The Group generates revenues from the grantinigerides to parties resident in overseas count8esh revenues
may, in certain circumstances, be subject to trducton of local withholding tax. In such casesyanues are
recorded net of any withholding tax deducted.

Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised using the effectieesist rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheetrisengash at bank and in hand and short-term depweih an

original maturity of 3 months or less. For thegmses of the cash flow statement, cash and cashakis consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above. Casinlaearns interest at floating rates based iy lolnk deposit
rates. Short-term deposits are made for varyingg@e depending on the immediate cash requirenarikee Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-termsileades.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which are non-interest beamgenerally have terms of between 30 to 90 dags;ezognised
and carried at original invoice amount less arvadlace for any uncollectible amounts. An allowafaredoubtful
debts is made when there is objective evidenceatheteivable is impaired. Such evidence inclaeassessment of
the debtor’s ability and willingness to pay the amodue. The amount of the allowance/impairmesd Is measured
as the difference between the carrying amountefréide receivables and the estimated future task &xpected to
be received from the relevant debtors.

Inventories

Inventories principally comprise laboratory andestBupplies and are valued at the lower of costrestdealisable
value. Inventory costs are recognised as the pseciprice of items from suppliers plus freight irdgaand any
applicable landing charges. Costs are assignéuedrasis of weighted average cost.

Performance bonds and deposits

Performance bonds and deposits include cash depgudid as security for the performance of certaintractual
obligations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont )

() Property, plant and equipment

(s)

(t)

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less acctedutkepreciation and any impairment in value. Beiption is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estichaseful life of the respective asset as follows:

Laboratory equipment — 3 to 5 years

Computer equipment — 3 years

Office equipment — 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements — lease term, being betiveernl 3 years

Costs relating to day-to-day servicing of any itefhproperty, plant and equipment are recognisequtafit or loss as
incurred. The cost of replacing larger parts ahedtems of property, plant and equipment are akged when
incurred and depreciated over the period untilrthext scheduled replacement, with the replacemparis being
subsequently written off.

Intangible assets
Patents

Patents held by the Group are used in the licengstng and research areas and are carriedtambsmortised on
a straight-line basis over their useful lives, bel® years. External costs incurred in filing adtecting patent
applications, for which no future benefit is resaoly assured, are expensed as incurred.

Research and development costs

Costs relating to research activities are expeasédcurred. An intangible asset arising from tigyment expenditure
on an internal project is recognised only when@mneup can demonstrate the technical feasibilitgarfipleting the
intangible asset so that it will be available feewr sale, its intention to complete and its igtiiti use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic bexefie availability of resources to complete thesttgoment and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure attdlle to the intangible asset during its develogmefo date, all
development costs have been expensed as incurtiegiraecoverability cannot be regarded as assured

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whh#reris an indication that an asset may be impaitedny such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimatdi@fasset's recoverable amount. An asset’s redaeeamount is
the higher of its fair value less costs of dispasats value in use and is determined for an iiddi&l asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that ardyiangiependent of those from other assets or grofipssets and the
asset’s value-in-use cannot be estimated to be tass fair value. In such cases, the assested for impairment as
part of the cash-generating unit to which it bekbndVhen the carrying amount of an asset or casérgting unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or essaging unit is considered impaired and is writlewn to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futureftss are discounted to their present value uaipge-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessmentdintte value of money and the risks specific toasset. Impairment
losses relating to operations are recognised isetlexpense categories consistent with the fundfigcghe impaired

asset unless the asset is carried at its revalmedrd, in which case the impairment loss is treafe@ revaluation
decrease.

An assessment is made at each reporting date ahdther there is any indication that previouslyomgused
impairment losses may no longer exist or may haeredsed. If such indication exists, the recoleramount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment isssversed only if there has been a change iedtimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount sindaghenpairment loss was recognised. If so, theyitey amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amdthe.increased amount cannot exceed the carryingrartiwat would
have been determined, net of depreciation, hadnpaifment loss been recognised for the assetan years. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss unlesgverses a decrement previously charged to eduityhich case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increaseer Aftch a reversal, the depreciation charge istdjun future periods
to allocate the asset's revised carrying amouss, &y residual value, on a systematic basis ts/ezmaining useful
life.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont )

(u)

v)

(w)

Leases and hire purchase agreements

Finance leases and hire purchase agreements, whitsfer to the Group substantially all the risksl denefits
incidental to ownership of the financed item, apitalised at the inception of the lease at thevidue of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value oftfi@imum lease payments.

Lease and hire purchase payments are apportioneddrefinance charges and a reduction of the agsddliability
S0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest orethaining balance of the liability. Finance cleargre recognised as
an expense in profit or loss. Capitalised leassdta and assets under hire purchase are depteniatethe shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset or the tefithe agreement. Leases where the lessor refalstantially all the
risks and benefits of ownership of the asset assifled as operating leases. Operating leasegrdagrare recognised
as an expense in the statement of comprehensimm@on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits
() Short-term obligations

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated result of employees rendering services tipetoeporting
date. These benefits include wages and salariesahleave and long service leave. Liabilitigsiag in respect of
wages and salaries, expected to be settled witleivé months of the reporting date are measurdldeat nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates which are texbtrbe paid when the liability is settled. Bxges for non-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when theeléataken during the year and are measured ed patid or
payable.

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and anneahiMe are not expected to be settled wholly witRimbnths after the
end of the reporting period in which the employeeders the related service. They are thereforgnised in the
provision for employee benefits and measured aprieent value of expected future payments to ke rimarespect
of services provided by employees up to the enthefreporting period using the projected unit drecthod.

Consideration is given to expected future wage saidry levels, experience of employee departurdspaniods of

service. Expected future payments are discourgid) unarket yields at the end of the reportingqueaf corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match, aslglas possible, the estimated future cash outflows

The obligations are presented as current liakslitithe balance sheet if the entity does not hawenconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve monthsrdfte reporting period, regardless of when theaaattlement is
expected to occur.

(iii) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group does not have any defined benefit furBlsitutory contributions to defined contributiorpstannuation
funds are recognised as an expense as they be@yablg@ Prepaid contributions are recognised aasset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in tharéupayments is available. Statutory contributians legally
enforceable in Australia.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service claims and engkod obligations are recognised when the Grogpaharesent
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result giast event, it is probable that an outflow of teses embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle théigaition and a reliable estimate can be made ohtheunt of the
obligation. Where the Group expects some or &l pfovision to be reimbursed, the reimbursemergdsgnised as
a separate asset but only when the reimbursementtuslly certain. The expense relating to angvsion is
presented in the statement of comprehensive inc&ef any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matengovisions are determined by discounting theeeigd future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects market assests of the time value of money and, where appateprthe risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting iseds the increase in the provision due to the passédime is

recognised as a finance cost.
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)

v)

@)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont .)
Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried aitised cost and represent liabilities for goodd amrvices
provided to the Group prior to the end of the fitiahyear that are unpaid and arise when the Gbegpmes obliged
to make future payments in respect of the purcbé$igese goods and services. Trade payables hed payables
generally have terms of between 30 and 60 days.

Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at thev#diie of the consideration received by the Compalransaction
costs arising on the issue of ordinary sharesem@gnised directly in equity as a deduction, néawf of the proceeds
received. The Company has a share-based paym@n pfan under which options to subscribe for @@mpany’s
shares have been granted to certain executivesthedemployees.

Financial assets and liabilities

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group @ahboth a financial asset and liability at failueathrough profit

or loss. Financial assets and liabilities at faiue through profit or loss are initially recoggdsat fair value on the
date a contract is entered into and are subseguentleasured to their fair value and at the endaoh reporting

period. The accounting for subsequent changesrindlue is recognised in profit or loss.

(aa) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used tooawct for all business combinations, including bass
combinations involving entities or businesses udanmon control, regardless of whether equity imstnts or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transfeardtie acquisition of a subsidiary comprisesfdievalues of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred amdetuity interests issued by the Group. The ceriidn transferred
also includes the fair value of any contingent @ersition arrangement and the fair value of anyepisting equity
interest in the subsidiary. All costs relatingtmuisitions are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities andtiogent liabilities assumed in a business comlanaare, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at theirrfaalues at the acquisition date. On an acquistiip-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controllingrést in the acquiree either at fair value or atribn-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquireetsdamtifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, theuatmof any non-controlling interest in the acqeir@nd the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous eqiritgrest in the acquiree over the fair value of@reup’s share of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded aslwgitlo If those amounts are less than the faiugabf the net
identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquiredthrdneasurement of all amounts has been reviehedlifference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargairchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash considerasiateferred, the amounts payable in the futured@®ounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange.diBeount rate used is the entity’s incrementaldwing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be otgd from an independent financier under compartdstes and
conditions.
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are evaluated and badestarical experience and other factors, includirgectations of
future events that may have a financial impacthm €ompany and that are believed to be reasonabler uhe
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liegsliare often determined based on estimates andhpssns of
future events. The key estimates and assumptiasave a significant risk of causing a materistment to the
carrying value of certain assets and liabilitiethimi the next annual reporting period are set eldv.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assetsngwaired on at least an annual basis, in accorduaite the
accounting policies stated in Note 2(s). This psscrequires an estimation to be made of the restaleeamount of
the cash-generating units to which the respectigeta are allocated.

Share-based payments transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled argiofis with employees by reference to the valuthefequity
instruments at the date on which they are grantéahagement determined the fair value by engagirnigdependent
valuer using a Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo sitiaraptions pricing model.

Useful lives of assets

The estimation of the useful lives of assets has limsed on historical experience as well as kease (for leased
equipment) and patent terms (for patents). Intaidithe condition of the assets is assessedast &nnually and
considered against the remaining useful life anfdstaents to useful lives are made when considezedssary.
Revenue from the sale of BREVAGen tests

In accordance with revenue recognition principllee, Group recognises the revenue from the saleR&E\B\Ger™

and BREVAGeplus® test on an accruals basis. This requires the [Gimestimate the amount of revenue expected

to be received based on the historical data of atsaeceived from tests sold since the launch dEBRGen™ and

BREVAGemlus®. The accrual estimate may be impacted by thevezability of the amounts via the U.S. healthcare

reimbursement system.
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Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
4. COST OF SALES
Inventories used 159,256 462,908
Direct labour costs 199,114 347,745
Depreciation expense 60,249 55,818
Inventories written off 324,441 24,772
Total cost of sales 743,060 891,243

1. Inventories written off include $218,178 (2015i)$of items that expired during the year.

5. OTHER REVENUE

License fees received 252,707 938,471
Royalties and annuities received 47,841 88,680
Total other revenue 300,548 1,027,151

2. License fees received includes $149,837 (204%i,308) of licensing income from Applera Corpaati
This agreement ended in December 2015.

6. OTHER INCOME

Net profit on disposal of plant and equipment 7,132 3,843
Research and development tax incentive 359,803 111,188
Interest income 67,100 39,951
Rental income 58,002 215,575
Total other income and expenses 492,037 370,557
GAIN ON SALE OF BUSINESS

Proceeds from sale of business 2,100,895
Trade and other receivables (190,990)
Prepayments and other assets (220,785)
Net value of fixed assets (176,065)
Goodwill (315,388)
Deferred revenue 51,952
Current provisions 120,989
Long term provisions 26,190
Total gain on sale of business 1,396,798

On 19 November 2014, the Company announced thntditcompleted the sale of its heritage Australi@me®ics
business to Specialist Diagnostics Services LtdDGJ, the wholly owned pathology subsidiary of Paiy Health
Care Ltd. Under the terms of sale, SDS acquireditisralian Genetics business for $2,100,895 (hetnployee
entittements and inclusive of GST) in cash. Thengai disposal as recognised in the ConsolidatetrSémt of
Comprehensive Income is $1,396,798 the detailshiftware noted above.

EXPENSES

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of fixed assets

Net foreign currency losses

Employee benefits expenses
Operating lease expenses

Research and development expenses

127,564 127,564
262,510 104,639
427,574 200,243
3,774,770 5,470,007
312,586 404,638
395,539 728,592
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2016 2015
$ $
9. INCOME TAX
Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facikax payable
Loss before income tax expense (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 28.50% (2015: B0% (2,410,805) (2,643,051)
Tax effect amounts which are not deductiiaxable)
in calculating taxable income

Net impairment losses and other write-downs - 98
Share-based payments expense 14,318 91,057
Fair value (gains)/ loss on financial liabilitiesfair value through profit or
loss - (104,774)
Research and development tax incentive 116,800 78,673
Disposal of Heritage business - 41,091
Tax effect of inter-company transactions - 5,370
Withholding tax expense 849 5,484
Other non-deductible items 1,450 2,032

(2,277,388) (2,524,020)
Difference in overseas tax rates (225,070) (138,687)
Under /(over) provision 10,583 (7,849)
Research and development tax credit (102,544) (33,356)
Tax losses not recognised 2,594,419 2,703,912
Income tax expense - -
Net deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets not recognised
ImmunAid option fee - 150,000
Property, plant & equipment 3,517 9,067
Capital raising costs 531,646 849,649
Applera settlement - 44,945
Intangible assets 1,978,065 2,185,263
Provisions 209,643 226,568
Other - 86,830
Total deferred tax assets 2,722,871 3,552,322
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
Prepayments - 355
Total deferred tax liabilities - 355
Net deferred tax assets on temporary differencebmaght to account (2,722,871) (3,551,967)

Total net deferred tax assets
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Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
9. INCOME TAX (cont.)
Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asseblen recognised 74,107,688 63,780,030
Potential tax benefit @ 28.50% (2015: 30%) 21,120,691 19,134,010

Subject to the Group continuing to meet the relegtatutory tests, the tax losses are availabl®ffiset against future taxable
income.

At 30 June 2016, the group had a potential tax fiieeéated to tax losses carried forward of $20,681. Such amount includes
net losses of $ 6,970,091 related to subsidiani¢ise United States (U.S.) which would expire a®@ryears starting in 2030. The
remaining tax losses carried forward of $ 14,150,8@@ indefinite and are attributable to the Grsugperations in Australia. As
such the total unused tax losses available to thaf; equal $21,120,691.

As at balance date, there are unrecognised taadagith a benefit of approximately $21,120,691 2(19,134,010) that have
not been recognised as a deferred tax asset @rthg. These unrecognised deferred tax assetenijilbe obtained if:

(&) The Group companies derive future assessable inobmaature and amount sufficient to enable theefiks to be realised;
(b) The Group companies continue to comply with thedd@mns for deductibility imposed by the law; and

(c) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect@neup companies from realising the benefit.

Tax consolidation legislation

Genetic Technologies Limited and its wholly-ownedsialian subsidiaries implemented the tax conatitid legislation as from
1 July 2003. The accounting policy in relatiorthis legislation is set out in Note 2(j).

The entities in the tax consolidated group haveredtinto a Tax Sharing Agreement which, in theiopi of the Directors, limits
the joint and several liabilities of the wholly-ogghentities in the case of a default by the hetity eBenetic Technologies Limited.

The entities have also entered into a Tax Fundiggedment under which the wholly-owned entitiesyfalbmpensate Genetic
Technologies Limited for any current tax payablsuased and are compensated by Genetic Technologieed for any current
tax receivable and deferred tax assets relatingtsed tax losses or unused tax credits thataarsférred to Genetic Technologies
Limited under the tax consolidation legislationheTfunding amounts are determined by referenche@tounts recognised in
the respective subsidiaries’ financial statements.

The amounts receivable or payable under the TariRgrAgreement are due upon receipt of the fundithgce from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable #feeend of each financial year.

As at 30 June 2016, there are no unrecognised tamypdifferences associated with the Group’s investts in subsidiaries,
as the Group has no liability for additional tamatshould unremitted earnings be remitted (2018} $n

10. LOSS PER SHARE
The following reflects the income and share daglus the calculations of basic and diluted logsspare:

Loss for the year attributable to the owners ofé&erTechnologies Limited (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares usealénlating loss per 1,715,214,158 1,072,803,358
share

Note: None of the 53,852,778 (2015: 24,241,667pngptover the Company’s ordinary shares that wenstanding as at the reporting
date are considered to be dilutive for the purpadfesalculating diluted earnings per share.
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 11,179,687 18,341,357
Total cash and cash equivalents 11,179,687 18,341,357
Reconciliation of loss for the year
Reconciliation of loss for the year after incometta
net cash flows used in operating activities isoflews:
Loss for the year after income tax (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Adjust for non-cash items
Amortisation and depreciation expenses 390,074 232,203
Interest on convertible notes converted to shares - 73,618
Share-based payments expense 50,239 303,522
Non-cash licensing revenue - (245,500)
Non-cash rental income (58,002) -
Net (gain)/loss on sale of business - (1,396,798)
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair véthmeugh - (349,246)
profit or loss
Net (profit) / loss on disposal of plant and equimin (7,132) (3,843)
Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses 412,579 200,243
Adjust for changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receiwable 84,178 152,348
(Increase) / decrease in prepaymantsother assets 189,178 (312,714)
Increase / (decrease) in financial assets at &irevthrough profit or loss - 795,533
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables (342,273) (436,249)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 13,286 105,525
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating actigtie (7,726,838) (9,691,528)
Financing facilities available
As at 30 June 2016, the following financing
facilities had been negotiated and were
available:
Total facilities
Credit cards 311,269 306,750
Facilities used as at reporting date
Credit cards (32,051) (25,708)
Facilities unused as at reporting date
Credit cards 279,218 281,042
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$ $
12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)
Trade receivables 392,521 524,580
Less: provision for doubtful debts - -
Net trade receivables 392,521 524,580
Other receivables 238,252 190,371
Total net current trade and other receivables 630,773 714,951

Note: Trade and other receivables for the Groupgude amounts due in US dollars of USD 291,540
(2015: USD 373,137).

Refer Note 31 for details of aging, interest rate credit risks applicable to trade and otherivabées for which, due to their
short-term nature, their carrying value approxirsdteir fair value.

13. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS(CURRENT)

Prepayments 149,459 188,701
Inventories at the lower of cost and net realisablae 166,942 317,497
Performance bond and deposits 4,209 3,590
Total current prepayments and other assets 320,610 509,788
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$ $

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Laboratory equipment, at cost 1,287,609 1,277,651
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,056,124) (914,050)
Net laboratory equipment 231,485 363,601
Computer equipment, at cost 547,176 502,695
Less: accumulated depreciation (487,574) (456,902)
Net computer equipment 59,602 45,793
Office equipment, at cost 167,564 167,564
Less: accumulated depreciation (164,527) (160,539)
Net office equipment 3,037 7,025
Equipment under hire purchase, at cost 594,626 594,626
Less: accumulated depreciation (594,626) (594,626)
Net equipment under hire purchase - -
Leasehold improvements, at cost 452,487 111,873
Less: accumulated depreciation (196,472) (110,697)
Net leasehold improvements 256,015 1,176
Total net property, plant and equipment 550,139 417,595
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening gross carrying amount 2,654,408 5,799,559
Add: additions purchased during the year 395,054 304,135
Less: disposals made during the year - (31,789)
Less: disposals due to sale of business - (3,417,497)
Closing gross carrying amount 3,049,462 2,654,408
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairmese®s (2,236,813) (5,405,395)
Add: disposals made during the year - 31,789
Add: disposals due to sale of business - 3,241,432
Less: depreciation expense charged (262,510) (104,639)
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairmersges (2,499,323) (2,236,813)
Total net property, plant and equipment 550,139 417,595
Reconciliation of movements in property, plant ancequipment by asset category

Opening Additions Depreciation Closing
Asset category net carrying during year expense ehcarrying

Amount amount

$ $ $ $

Laboratory equipment 363,601 9,958 (142,074) 231,48
Computer equipment 45,793 44,481 (30,672) 59,602
Office equipment 7,025 - (3,988) 3,037
Leasehold improvements 1,176 340,615 (85,776) 256,0
Totals 417,595 395,054 (262,510) 550,139
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Patents
Patents, at cost 36,662,592 36,662,592
Less: accumulated amortisation (32,938,414) (32,914,177)
Less: impairment losses (3,632,338) (3,632,338)
Total net patents 91,840 116,077
Other intangible assets
Assets associated with BREVAGEbreast cancer risk test, at cost 1,033,273 1,033,273
Less: accumulated amortisation (516,636) (413,309)
Total net other intangible assets 516,637 619,964
Total net intangible assets 608,477 736,041
Reconciliation of patents
Opening net carrying amount 116,077 140,314
Less: amortisation expense chargeter below) (24,237) (24,237)
Total net patents 91,840 116,077
Reconciliation of other intangible assets
Opening net carrying amount 619,964 723,291
Less: amortisation expense chargeter below) (103,327) (103,327)
Total net other intangible assets 516,637 619,964

Remaining useful lives

The assets associated with the BREVA®ehreast cancer risk test have a remaining usééubfi5 years as at 30

June 2016.

Disclosure of expenses

The total amortisation expense charged during #ae i respect of intangible assets of $127,5@#sidosed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomerihddneadings of laboratory and research and olewednt costs

($103,327) and licensing, patent and legal co24,287).
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Trade payables 392,322 517,079
Other payables 270,504 232,497
Accrued expenses 175,157 430,680
Total current trade and other payables 837,983 1,180,256

Note: Trade payables for the Group include amoudis in US dollars of USD 178,679 (2015: USD 232,281 Swiss francs of CHF
2,702 (2015: CHF 2,082).

Refer Note 31 for details of contractual maturitygl ananagement of interest rate, foreign exchanddiguidity risks applicable to

trade and other payables for which, due to theirtslerm nature, their carrying value approximakesr fair value.

17. PROVISIONS(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT)

Current provisions

Annual leave 223,100 200,957
Long service leave 217,679 328,950
Make good * 53,427 -
Total current provisions 494,206 529,907
Non-current provisions

Long service leave 36,145 25,321
Make good * 38,163 -
Total non-current provisions 74,308 25,321
Total provisions 568,514 555,228

* Make good provision

Genetic Technologies Limited is required to resthecleased premises situated in Fitzroy, Melbotoribeir original
condition at the end of the lease terms. A prowisias been recognised for the present value a@dimmated expenditure
required to remove any leasehold improvements.& bests have been capitalised as part of the téesisehold
improvements and are amortised over the shortirederm of the lease or the useful life of theetsssSee Note 2 (w) for the
Group’s other accounting policies relevant to psmrnis.
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Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
17. PROVISIONS(CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT) (cont.)
Reconciliation of annual leave provision
Balance at the beginning of the financial year ,200 370,327
Add: obligation accrued during the year 260,434 380,804
Less: amount transferred on disposal of business - (66,623)
Less: utilised during the year (238,291) (483,551)
Balance at the end of the financial year 223,100 200,957
Reconciliation of long service leave provision
Balance at the beginning of the financial year , 354 426,556
(Less)/ Add: obligation accrued during the year (16,904) 42,949
Less: amount transferred due to sale of business - (80,558)
Less: utilised during the year (83,543) (34,676)
Balance at the end of the financial year 253,824 354,271

Note: The current provisions for annual leave aodgd service leave include a total amount of $29%8,8015: $381,683) in
respect of obligations which, based on historicatlence, the Company estimates will be settled rii@e 12 months from

balance date.

18. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE PROFIT OR LOSS (CURRENT AND
NON-CURRENT)

Debt convertible notes at fair value - current - 25,000

Total financial liabilities at fair value througinggit or loss - 25,000

Debt convertible notes

During the year ended 30 June 2015 the Companlstdathe raising of $2,150,000 via the issue disted secured
(debt) notes to existing and new Australian insthal and wholesale investors. The debt notesecha 10.0%
coupon rate, and as approved at the Annual Gekferating, held on 25 November 2014, became conlentibtes
which could convert into ordinary shares (at a #discount to the 5 day VWAP). These convertibleesearried
free attached options to purchase further sharg®iCompany.

During the current financial year $25,000 (20152,$25,000) convertible notes plus capitalised @gkemwere
converted into 1,091,093 (2015: 150,961,041) orglishares of the Company.
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19. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estinmaseke in determining the fair values of the finahicistruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the finhstatements. To provide an indication aboutéability of the inputs used
in determining fair value, the group has classiftedinancial instruments into the three levelssaribed under the Accounting
Standards. An explanation of each level follows:

(&) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fentidal assets or liabilities (level 1);

(b) inputs other than prices included within level atthre observable for the asset or liability, eitlieectly or indirectly (level
2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not lihse observable market data (unobservable inpetg)(3).

The following table presents the Group’s finanasdets and financial liabilities measured and mgised at fair value as at

30 June 2016 and 2015. No level 1 or level 2 fitdrassets or liabilities were held by the Gros@a&30 June 2016 and
2015

ImmunAid option Convertible note
financial asset (financial liabilities)
$ $

Opening balance 1 July 201 795,53: (2,502,384)
Additions - (2,150,00C
Conversions to equity - 433,491
Exchange differences - (155,353)
Fair value gain/ (loss) recognized through prafid $oss (795,533) 349,246
Closing balance 30 June 2015 L- (25,000)
Conversions to equity - 25,000
Closing balance 30 June 2016 1. -

@ Management has recognised a fair value of $NittferlmmunAid financial asset as at 30 June 201652$nil).
The complete write down to $Nil this asset was mded as a fair value loss on financial assets intvédue
through profit or loss in the Comprehensive Inc@teement for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers imd &ransfers out of fair value hierarchy levelatthe end of the reporting
period.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and &@onring fair value measurements during the yesmthe Company did
not have any fair value assets or liabilities aj30e 2016.
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19. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (cont.)
(i) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 ahlevel 3 fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations foritarfcial assets and financial liabilities at leastually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directgrdate their assessment of the fair value of esabt and liability, taking
into account the most recent independent valuatibhe directors determine an assets or liabilitgsie range within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The fair value of financial instruments that are¢ tmaded in an active market is determined usirgat®n techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use ofredisie market data where it is available and rsljitde as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant irfpurequired to fair value an instrument are obddeyahe instrument is
included in level 2. If one or more of the sigréfint inputs is not based on observable market taainstrument is
included in level 3.

(iii) Valuation processes
Convertible note

The value of the Convertible Note outstanding &0atune 2015 was calculated with reference tads value, which
approximates its fair value.

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

20. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid-up capital
Fully paid ordinary shares 115,272,576 115,247,128
Total contributed equity 115,272,576 115,247,128
Movements in shares on issue
Year ended 30 June 2015 Shares $
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 613,918,492 90,080,492
Add: shares issued as part of private placements 621,574,062 21,445,427
Add: shares issued as part of the conversion ofartible notes 315,732,411 4,507,109
Add: shares issued on exercise of options 122,966,666 1,844,500
Less: transaction costs arising on share issue - (2,572,664)
Add: shares issued in relation to a share-baseagaty(Note 25) 35,876,392 -
Add/ (less): transaction costs on placement ofesh@ote 25) 4,123,608 (57,736)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,714,191,631 115,247,128
Year ended 30 June 2016 Shares $
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,714,191,631 115,247,128
Add: shares issued as part of the conversion ofegtible notes 1,091,093 27,102
Less: transaction costs arising on share issue - (1,654)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,715,282,724 115,272,576

Terms and conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares have the right to receive divideagldeclared and, in the event of winding up the@my, to participate in the
proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets ipgstion to the number of and amounts paid up oreshaeld. Ordinary shares,

which have no par value, entitle their holder te wote, either in person or by proxy, at a meatiingpe Company.
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20. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (cont.)

Capital management

When managing capital, Management’s objective isrsure that the Group continues as a going coreewell as to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for othdesialders. Management also aims to maintain datagtructure to reduce the
entity’s cost of capital.

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

21. RESERVES
Foreign currency translation 1,419,551 112,332
Share-based payments 4,635,310 4,585,071
Total reserves 6,054,861 4,697,403
Reconciliation of foreign currency translation reseve
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 112,332 (301,673)
Add: net currency translation gain / (loss) 1,307,219 414,005
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,419,551 112,332
Reconciliation of share-based payments reserve
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 88,671 4,223,813
Add: share-based payments expense 50,239 303,522
Add: transaction costs on placement of shares - 57,736
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,635,310 4,585,071

Nature and purpose of reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
This reserve is used to record exchange differemgsisg from the translation of the financial staents of foreign subsidiaries.

Share-based payments reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of shased payments provided to employees and othergprg\similar services as
part of their remuneration.

22. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (100,985,283) (92,175,113)
Add: net loss attributable to owners of Genetichihetogies Limited (8,458,965) (8,810,170)
Balance at the end of the financial year (109,444,248) (100,985,283)
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23. OPTIONS
As at 30 June 2016, the following options over mady shares in the Company were outstanding.
Weighted ave. Weighted ave.
2016 exercise price 2015 exercise price
Unlisted employee optior{gefer below) 33,486,111 $0.022 3,875,000 $0.140
Unlisted options attached to convertible notes 20,366,667 $0.015 20,366,667 $0.015
53,852,778 $0.019 24,241,667 $0.035

On 30 November 2001, the Directors of the Compatgtdished a Staff Share Plan. On 19 November,288&hareholders of
the Company approved the introduction of a new Byg# Option Plan. Under the terms of the respeélans, the Directors of
the Company may grant options over ordinary shiar€enetic Technologies Limited to executives, attasts and employees
of the Group. The options, which are granted latast, are not transferable and are not quoteti@ASX. As at 30 June 2016,
there was 5 executive and 5 employees who heldrapthat had been granted under the Plans. Omfansed under the Plans
carry no rights to dividends and no voting rights.

The movements in the number of options grantednthéePlans are as follows:

Weighted ave. Weighted ave.

2016 exercise price 2015 exercise price
Unlisted employee options
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 3,875,000 $0.140 7,775,000 $0.151
Add: options granted during the year 33,736,111 $0.022 6,875,000 $0.040
Less: options exercised during the year - - - -
Less: options forfeited during the year (4,125,000) $0.136 (10,775,000) $0.084
Less: options expired during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the financial year 33,486,111 $0.022 3,875,000 $0.140

There were no options exercised under the EmplOye®n Plan during the year ended 30 June 20165(20il).

The numbers of options outstanding as at 30 Juh& B® ASX code, including the respective datesxpfrg and exercise prices,
are tabled below (refer Note 26 for further infotima). The options tabled below are not listedA3X.

) . Weighted ave. Weighted ave.
Option description 2016 exercise price 2015 exercise price
Unlisted employee options
GTGAM (expiring 31 July 2016) - - 1,000,000 $0.200
GTGAO (expiring 29 August 2017) - - 250,000 $0.140
GTGAW (expiring 31 March 2016) - - 1,250,000 $0.190
GTGAY (expiring 11 July 2018) - - 250,000 $0.110
GTGAA (expiring 31 May 2019) 250,000 $0.040 1,125,000 $0.040
GTGAD (expiring 14 September 2020) 1,000,000 $0.058 - -
GTGAD (expiring 24 November 2020) 24,236,111 $0.020 - -
GTGAD (expiring 31 January 2021) 500,000 $0.039 - -
GTGAD (expiring 31 March 2021) 7,500,000 $0.020 - -

33,486,111 $0.022 3,875,000 $0.140
Unlisted options attached to convertible notes
GTGAC (expiring 2 December 2018) 20,366,667 $0.015 20,366,667 $0.015
Balance at the end of the financial year 53,852,778 $0.019 24,241,667 $0.035
Exercisable at the end of the financial year 20,450,000 $0.015 23,033,334 $0.034

The weighted average remaining contractual lifepiions outstanding as at 30 June 2016 was 3.18 {2@l5: 3.20 years).
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified a sole operating segmen¢ported that is consistent with the internabréipg provided to the
chief operating decision maker and is aligned ¢éoathe major revenue stream.

The Groups operating segment is summarised asvillo

Business segments

Revenues and income

Segment Sales Other Totals Profit / (loss)
$ $ $ $
Operations 2016 824,586 792,585 1,617,171 (8,458,96
2015 2,011,918 2,794,506 4,806,424 (8,810,170)
Assets Liabilities Amortisation  Purchases of
Segment /depreciation eguipment
$ $ $ $
Operations 2016 13,289,686 (1,406,497) (390,074) 5,08a
2015 20,719,732 (1,760,484) (232,203) 304,135

Geographic information

Australia — is the home country of the parent entity and ltieation of the Company’'s genetic testing andnkieg
operations.

USA-is the home of Phenogen Sciences Inc. and GereJgrporation.
Switzerland- is the home of GeneType AG.

Geographic information

Revenues and income

Sales Other Totals Profit/(Loss)
$ $ $ $
Australia 2016 220 792,585 792,805 (4,241,451)
2015 910,740 2,794,358 3,705,098 (1,519,192)
USA 2016 824,366 - 824,366 (4,197,368)
2015 1,101,178 148 1,101,326 (7,276,878)
Other 2016 - - - (20,146)
2015 - - - (14,100)
Totals 2016 824,586 792,585 1,617,171 (8,458,965)
2015 2,011,918 2,794,506 4,806,424 (8,810,170)
Assets Liabilities Amortisation Purchases of
/depreciation Equipment
$ $ $ $
Australia 2016 12,553,539 (1,199,257) (379,944) 332
2015 3,139,778 (1,532,911) (219,784) 304,135
USA 2016 733,168 (202,200) (10,130) 12,161
2015 17,576,978 (224,917) (12,419) -
Other 2016 2,979 (5,040) - -
2015 2,976 (2,656) - -
Totals 2016 13,289,686 (1,406,497) (390,074) 396,05
2015 20,719,732 (1,760,484) (232,203) 304,135
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24. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont.)

Additional segment disclosures
Other revenues and incormeludes interest received of $67,099 (2015: $39,95

Expensefcludes employee benefits expenses of $3,7742005: $5,470,007).

Assets includes cash of $11,179,687 (2015: $18,341,357).

Liabilities includes trade and other payables of $812,4575(28111,102,974) and provisions of $568,514 (20155§%28).
Included in the above figures are the followinggisegment balances and transactions:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Loan payable (USA) and loan receivable (Australia) 512,816 16,948,601
Foreign exchange gain (USA) and foreign exchangg (Australia) 1,750,759 3,823,791
Cost of sales (USA) and sales (Australia) 91,896 153,581

Segment products and locations

The principal geographic segment is Australia, \hith Company’'s headquarters being located in Mettgoin the State of
Victoria however the key sales activities take plecthe USA.

Major customers

During the years ended 30 June 2016 & 30 June 26 was no customer from whom the Group generaigzhues
representing more than 10% of the total consolitleggenue from operations.

25. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Employee option plan

On 30 November 2001, the Directors of the Compatgtdished a Staff Share Plan. On 19 November,2888&hareholders of
the Company approved the introduction of a new Byg# Option Plan. Under the terms of the respe®ians, the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant options over thdirary shares in the Genetic Technologies Limite@xecutives, consultants,
employees, and former Non-Executive Directorshef@&roup.

During the year the following options over ordinaghares were granted pursuant the Employee OpltionaPno cost;

i. 2,000,000 options (2015: 6,875,000 options) toralrer of employees of the Company’s US Subsidiangnegen
Sciences Inc. The options vest based on non-mpétédrmance conditions (requirement to remain eggaddy the
Company) in three equal tranches after 12 monthsn@nths, and 36 months from date of grant, respdgt The
fair value of each option granted is estimated igx@ernal valuer using a Black-Scholes optionipgienodel, with
assumptions as follows

2016 2016
Grant Date 1 April 2016 25 November 2015
Options issued 500,000 1,500,000
Dividend yield - -
Historic volatility and expected volatility 80% 80%
Option exercise price $0.039 $0.058
Weighted average exercise price $0.039 $0.058
Risk-free interest rate 1.93% 2.22%
Expected life of an option 4.3 years 4.5 years
Model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

As at 30 June 2016, there were 5 employees whoopdilons that had been granted under the Plan.
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25. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (cont.)
(a) Employee option plan (cont.)

The expected price volatility is based on the histeolatility (based on the remaining life of tbptions), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility due toliply available information

i. 31,736,111 options (2015: nil) to a number of KMihva market related vesting condition of shareggrowth.
The options are exercisable at any time after #sing conditions are met for a period of up tee&rg after
granting. The vesting conditions that must be neédite a tranche of Options shall vest, namely theo&th VWAP
at which the shares of the Company must be traglindpe ASX, are $0.05, $ 0.10 and $0.20. The faue of each
option granted is estimated by an external valsargia Monte Carlo simulation analysis as detdifetthe table

below,
2016 2016

Grant Date 1 April 2016 25 November 2015
Options issued 7,500,000 24,236,111
Dividend yield - -
Historic volatility and expected volatility 80% 80%
Option exercise price $0.020 $0.020
Weighted average exercise price $0.020 $0.020
Risk-free interest rate 1.93% 2.22%
Expected life of an option 4.3 years 4.5 years
Model used Monte Carlo Monte Carlo

As at 30 June 2016, there were 5 executives whibdmions that had been granted under the Plan.

The expected price volatility is based on the histeolatility (based on the remaining life of tbptions), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility due toliply available information

(b) Other share based payments

During the previous financial year the Company eaténto a Standby Equity Placement Facility Agreetwith the Kentgrove
Capital Growth Fund (“Kentgrove Capital”), an intreent fund managed by Kentgrove Capital Pty Ltd/ielbourne-based
investment and advisory firm.

Key terms of the Standby Equity Placement Facility

» Standby equity placement facility of up to A$24,@ID with a maturity date 21 January, 2017

e Multiple placements permitted

« For each placement, shares are issued at a 5%udigoca volume weighted average price (VWAP) dkerperiod of
the placement

« Afacility fee of 2.33% of the facility amount ipable, to be satisfied by the issue of sharesfadily fee, less 20%,
will be rebated at termination or at maturity, pata for any amount of the facility that is unistd.

* The commencement fee rebate may be paid by cadtaes.

A total of 40,000,000 shares have been issued tbgk@ve Capital on commencement date of the faa@lifreement in January
2015. As at 30 June 2015, 10.31% of the facility been utilised. There was no movement in this atnduring the year ended
30 June 2016. Hence, 10.31% of 40,000,000 sharieb @mounted to $57,736 has been accounted foamsaction costs for the
placements made by Kentgrove Capital. The remaiBhg9% of the 40,000,000 shares is accountedsf@hares issued in
relation to a share-based payment. This repreaerdgtion for Kentgrove Capital to acquire shanas the Company has granted
to Kentgrove Capital. The option value has beeard@hed through the use of a Black-Scholes optraring model and the fair
value of consideration paid and expensed for th& 3@ar was $330,059. (2016: Nil)
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25. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (cont.)

(c) Expenses arising from share-based payment traastions

Total expenses arising from share-based paymersisiciions recognised during the period as pannpl@yee benefit expense
were as follows:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

Options issued under employee option plan 50,239 (26,536)
Shares issued as consideration for standby edaitgment facility - 330,059
Total 50,239 303,523
26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating lease expenditure commitments
Minimum operating lease payments
- not later than one year 220,486 75,536
- later than one year but not later than five years 248,481 -
- later than five years - -
Total minimum operating lease payments 468,967 75,536

As at 30 June 2016, the above operating leasdsadtathe following premises that are currentlgugmed by the Group both of
which are being renegotiated since balance date:

Minimum
Location Landlord Use Date of expiry payments
of lease
3)

60-66 Hanover Street )
Fitzroy, Victoria 3065 Australia Crude Pty. Ltd. Office / laboratory 31 August 2018 453,821
9115 Harris Corners Parkway, Suite 320 New Boston Harris Office 31 October 2016 15,146
Charlotte, North Carolina 28269 USA Corners LLC

Total 468,967

Apart from the above, there were no other commitmencontingencies as at 30 June 2016.

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
27. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Audit and assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of:
Audit 334,560 558,360
Other audit firms in respect of:
Audit of the Financial Reports of subsidiaries 5,868 2,539
340,428 560,899

Total remuneration in respect of audit services
1 Audit fees consist of services that would noryriadl provided in connection with statutory & regoly filings or
engagements, including services that generally tr@dyindependent accountant can reasonably prosigdh as comfort
letters
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Ultimate parent

Genetic Technologies Limited is the ultimate Augiraparent company. As at the date of this Repartshareholder controls
more than 50% of the issued capital of the Company.

Transactions within the Group and with other related parties

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the only tcdioss between entities within the Group and otkéated parties occurred,
are as listed below. Except where noted, all atsoware charged on similar to market terms andmingercial rates.

Phenogen Sciences Inc.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, Phenogen $siémc, a subsidiary, purchased testing servioes Genetic Technologies
Corporation Pty. Ltd., another subsidiary at a c0$91,676 (2015: $153,581). This transactiorimieated on consolidation.

Debt convertible notes

As described in Note 20, during the previous yéar €Company finalised the raising of $2,150,000 thim issue of unlisted

secured (debt) notes to existing and new Austratistitutional and wholesale investors. The deltéscarried a 10.0% coupon
rate, and as approved at the Annual General Medtgld on 25 November 2014, became convertiblesnetéch could convert

into ordinary shares (at a 10.0% discount to théa$ VWAP). These convertible notes also carry faached options to

purchase further shares in the Company.

$125,000 of these convertible notes were issuadhalder associated with Dr Lindsay Wakefield, anpany director at the time
of issue, on the same terms and conditions as otiterholders. All of these convertible notes weseverted during the year.
The 8,333,333 share options attached to these dieenotes remain unexercised at the end of gae.y

There were no transactions with parties relatd€etp Management Personnel during the year otherttistrdisclosed above.

Details of Directors and Key Management Personnelsaat balance date

Directors Executives

Dr Malcolm R. BrandorfNon-Executive Chairman) Mr Kevin Fischer(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Eutillio Buccilli (Executive Director Ms Diana Newpor{Quality and Business Operations Director)

& Chief Executive Officer) Dr Richard Allman(Scientific Director)

Mr Grahame Leonard ANNon-Executive) Mr Chris SaundergVice President, Sales and Marketing — Phenogen)
Dr Lindsay WakefieldNon-Executive) Dr Susan GrosSenior Medical Director — Phenogen)

Dr Paul KasiarfNon-Executive)
Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Short-term employee benefits 1,350,986 1,457,725
Post-employment benefits 104,081 118,660
Share-based payments 49,445 (25,959)
Other long-term benefits 28,552 (8,854)
Termination benefits 53,795 -
Total remuneration of Key Management Personnel 1,586,859 1,541,572
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29. SUBSIDIARIES

The following diagram is a depiction of the Grosusture as at 30 June 2016.

Genetic Technologies Limited

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Genetic
GeneType RareCellect GeneType Technologies Phenogen GeneType
Corporation Pty. Ltd. Pty. Ltd. Corporation Sciences Inc. AG
Pty. Ltd.

Name of Group company

Incorporation details

Group nterest (%)

Net carrying value ($)

2016 2015 2016 2015

Entities held directly by parent

GeneType Pty. Ltd. 5 September 1990

(Dormant) Victoria, Australia 100% 100% - -

Genetic Technologies Corporation Pty. Ltd. 11 October 1996

(Genetic testing) N.S.W., Australia 100% 100% 2 2

RareCellect Pty. Ltd. 7 March 2001

(Dormant) N.S.W., Australia 100% 100% 10 10

GeneType AG 13 February 1989

(Dormant) Zug, Switzerland 100% 100% 1,350 1,350

GeneType Corporation 18 December 1989

(Dormant) California, U.S.A. 100% 100% - -

Phenogen Sciences Inc. 28 June 2010

(BREVAGen™) Delaware, U.S.A. 100% 100% 11,006 11,006
Total carrying value 12,368 12,368
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30. PARENT ENTITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary financial information

The individual financial statements for the paremtity, Genetic Technologies Limited, disclose gélggregate amounts set out in
the following table.

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Balance sheet
Current assets
11,208,824 1,609,280
Total assets
12,989,540 28,623,265
Current liabilities
1,046,119 1,384,627
Total liabilities
13,220,062 14,080,143
Equity
Contributed equity 115,272,576 115,247,127
Reserves (share-based payments) 2,820,633 2,770,395
Accumulated losses (118,323,731) (103,474,400)
Total equity (230,522) 14,543,122
Total comprehensive loss (14,849,331) (671,257)

Related party information

As at 30 June 2016, an amount of $56,788,897 (2pA5B460,572) was receivable by the Company franaatious subsidiaries
and associates. As at the same date, an amo#ih2f99,634 (2015: $12,670,195) was payable by tvapany to its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All such loans are unsecyeagrally interest free and there are no fixed sesfrepayment.

Financial risk management

In assessing the recoverability of intercompangirables, Genetic Technologies Limited, the paeetity, raises a provision for
diminution to ensure that the carrying amount ekthreceivables does not exceed the net tangd#ésasf the subsidiaries. The
balance of the provision as at 30 June 2016 wa®3$5892 (2015:$44,235,233).

Contingent liabilities and commitments of the parehentity
As at the date of this Report, the parent entity i@ contingent liabilities or other commitments.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety ofaficial risks such as credit risk, market riskl(iding foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. The Grosiverall risk management program focuses on tpeedictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential advergetsfion the financial performance of the Group.e Group uses different
methods to measure the different types of risk hiclvit is exposed. These methods include seitgitalysis in the case of
foreign exchange, interest rate and aging andlysisredit risk.

Risk management is managed by the Executive unddemce provided by the Board of Directors viaAtgdit Committee,
which provides guidance for overall risk managemastwell as policies covering specific areas, sagltredit risk, foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Comanittentifies and evaluates financial risks in clogeperation with the Group’s
executive management.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comergash and cash equivalents. The Group also hes fotancial assets and
liabilities, such as trade receivables and payaklilbih arise directly from its operations.

The Group does not typically enter into derivatiransactions, such as interest rate swaps or fdraarency contracts. It is,
and has been throughout the period under reviewGtioup’s policy that no trading in financial instrents shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financr@truments are credit risk exposures, foreign aayreisk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The policies for managing eachtbése risks are summarised below.

Details of the significant accounting policies anethods adopted, including the criteria for rectignj the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses argnised, in respect of each class of financial asseincial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2.

The Group holds the following financial instruments

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash at bank / on hand 11,179,687 18,341,357
Trade and other receivables 630,773 714,951
Performance bond and deposits 4,209 3,590
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo - -
Total financial assets 11,814,669 19,059,898
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 812,457 1,102,974
Financial liabilities at fair value through profdit loss - 25,000
Total financial liabilities 812,457 1,127,974

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is managed on a Group baSidit risk arises from cash and cash equivalentl deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit expes to customers, including outstanding receisabiel committed transactions.
The trade & other receivables balance at year eddides an accrual estimate of revenue to be ¢etletom the sale of
BREVAGen™ andBREVAGemlus® tests. This estimate is calculated based on hiatatata of amounts received from tests
sold and is sensitive to/ may be impacted by thewerability of the amounts through the U.S. health reimbursement system.
Recoverability of accrued revenues for tests peréal is regularly monitored by management. Otheeivables represent
amounts accrued for which reimbursement will beliagfor from the Australian Taxation Authority usdthe Governments
Research & Development grant. The maximum expogoresedit risk at 30 June 2016 in relation to ealass of recognsied
financial asset is the carrying amount of thosetasas indicated in the balance sheet.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Credit risk (cont.)

Financial assets included on the balance sheepdtitantially subject the Group to concentratiorerefdit risk consist principally
of cash and cash equivalents and trade receivaltfesiccordance with the guidelines of the Grougt®rt Term Investment
Policy, the Group minimises this concentration isk by placing its cash and cash equivalents wiftanicial institutions that
maintain superior credit ratings in order to lirtlie degree of credit exposure. For banks and diahimstitutions, only
independently-rated parties with a minimum ratifig/e1” are accepted. The Group has also estabtistuidelines relative to
credit ratings, diversification and maturities teatk to maintain safety and liquidity. The Gralges not require collateral to
provide credit to its customers. OncBREVAGen™ or BREVAGemlus® test has been performed, the patient elects to sel
pay or where applicable seek healthcare providgmpat on receipt of the outcome of the test. Thireaof this revenue
recognition cycle increases the risk of credit exppe. The Group has not entered into any tramseacthat qualify as a financial
derivative instrument.

The trade receivables balance is reflective obhistl collection rates which are monitored on agang basis and adjusted
accordingly based on changing collection and test.dAs at 30 June 2016, the balance of the Grdofas accrued net trade
receivables was $392,521 (2015: $524,580 (refee NB}.

Credit risk further arises in relation to financgalarantees given by the Group to certain pamiggspect of obligations of its
subsidiaries. Such guarantees are only providegdaptional circumstances.

An analysis of the aging of trade and other red#ésas is provided below:

Consolidated
2016 2015

Net trade and other receivables

Current (less than 30 days) 630,773 714,951
31 days to 60 days - -
61 days to 90 daysote) - -
Greater than 90 daysote) - -

Total net trade and other receivalgste 12) 630,773 714,951

Note: Given the nature of the trade receivableghferemaining business all amounts are considerke current.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposefreign currency exchange risk, primarily wittspect to the US dollar,
through financial assets and liabilities. It is fBroup’s policy not to hedge these transactiontkeaexposure is considered to be
minimal from a consolidated operations perspectivarther, as the Group incurs expenses which ayafpe in US dollars, the
financial assets that are held in US dollars pmwadhatural hedge for the Group.

Foreign exchange risk arises from planned futurernercial transactions and recognised assets drilitits denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional cuegrand net investments in foreign operations. Tikk is measured using
sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.

The Group has a Foreign Exchange Management Relimh was developed to establish a formal framevemidk procedures for
the efficient management of the financial riskst tinapact on Genetic Technologies Limited throughattivities outside of
Australia, predominantly in the United States. Pudicy governs the way in which the financial assand liabilities of the
Group that are denominated in foreign currenciesngainaged and any risks associated with that mameageare identified and
addressed. Under the policy, which is updated mygalar basis as circumstances dictate, the Ggeaprally retains in foreign
currency only sufficient funds to meet the expeagdenditures in that currency. Surplus fundscareverted into Australian
dollars as and when deemed appropriate by the Boaahsultation with the CFO.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group held the followingiiicial assets and liabilities that were denoméhettdoreign currencies:

Consolidated Year UsD EUR CHF

Financial assets

Cash at bank / on hand 2016 5,108,964 32,767 -
2015 28,231 100,535 -

Total financial assets 2016 5,108,964 32,767 -
2015 28,231 100,535 -

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 2016 96,069 - -
2015 108,380 - 2,082

Total financial liabilities 2016 96,069 - -
2015 108,380 - 2,082

Notes: USD - United States dollars EUR — European euros CHF — Swiss francs

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Austra@lar / US dollar exchange rate weakened by 286tn 0.7655 at the
beginning of the year to 0.7441 at the end of &y

Based on the financial instruments held at 30 20®, had the Australian dollar weakened/ stremgitidoy 10% against the US
dollar with all other variables held constant, Bmup’s loss for the year would have been $748|6@@r/ $612,000 higher

(2015: loss $10,000 lower / loss $12,000 higheBiniy as a result of changes in the values of eashcash equivalents which
are denominated in US dollars, as detailed in e tables.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)

Market risk (cont.)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises in i@fato its short-term deposits with various finahénstitutions. If rates were to
decrease, the Group may generate less interestug¥®mm such deposits. However, given the raditighort duration of such
deposits, the associate risk is relatively minimal.

The Group has a Short Term Investment Policy whiak developed to manage the Group’s surplus caskash equivalents.
In this context, the Group adopts a prudent apprdlaat is tailored to cash forecasts rather thakisg high returns that may
compromise access to funds as and when they aneaeq Under the policy, the Group deposits itpkis cash in a range of
deposits / securities over different time framed aith different institutions in order to diversiiig portfolio and minimise risk.

On a monthly basis, Management provides the Bodtitd avdetailed list of all cash and cash equivaleshowing the periods
over which the cash has been deposited, the nacheradit rating of the institution holding the dsfiand the interest rate at
which the funds have been deposited.

At 30 June 20186, if interest rates had changedby0+basis points from the year-end rates, witbthkr variables held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year would have been $#D|6wer / higher (2015: loss $5,000 lower / highes a result of higher /
lower interest income from cash and cash equivale@bnsolidated equity for the Group would haventf20,000 higher / lower
(2015: $5,000 higher / lower) mainly as a resultvincrease / decrease in the fair value of cagltash equivalents.

The exposure to interest rate risks and the effedtiterest rates of financial assets and liagdjtboth recognised and unrealised,
for the Group is as follows:

Year Floating rate Fixed rate Carrying Weighted ave. Ave. maturity
amount effective rate Period
Consolidated $ $ $ % Days
Financial assets
Cash at bank / on hand 2016 3,952,078 - 3,952,078 .98%4 At call
2015 1,108,297 - 1,108,297 2.25% At call
Performance bond / deposits 2016 - 4,209 4,209 - At call
2015 - 3,950 3,950 - At call
Totals 2016 3,952,078 4,209 3,956,287
2015 1,108,297 3,950 1,112,247

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value 2016 - - - - -
through profit or loss

2015 - 25,000 25,000 10.00% At call
Totals 2016 - - -
2015 - 25,000 25,000

Note The Company holds the balance of its casiominterest bearing bank accounts.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintagnisufficient cash and cash equivalents and thdabildy of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credilitiesj such as its hire purchase and credit cacilities. The Group manages
liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecaatd actual cash flows and, wherever possible, nmgf¢he maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. Due to the dyitanature of the underlying businesses, Managemierg to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines aviaida Surplus funds are generally only investeithistruments that are tradeable
in highly liquid markets. Refer note 2(a) for fugthinformation on the material uncertainty that magt significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)
Liquidity risk (cont.)

A balanced view of cash inflows and outflows afiiegtthe Group is summarised in the table below:

Year <6 months 6 to 12 months

1to5years

Totals
$

11,179,687
18,341,357

630,773
714,951

4,209
3,590

Consolidated $

Financial assets

Cash at bank / on hand 2016 11,179,687
2015 18,341,357

Trade and other receivables 2016 630,773
2015 714,951

Performance bond and deposits 2016 4,209
2015 3,590

Total financial assets 2016 11,814,669

2015 19,059,898

11,814,669
19,059,898

Financial liabilities

812,457
1,102,974

Trade and other payables 2016 812,457
2015 1,102,974
Total financial liabilities 2016 812,457

2015 1,102,974

812,457
1,102,974

2016 11,002,212
2015 17,956,924

Net maturity

11,002,212
17,956,924

The Group had access to the following undrawn lamg facility as at 30 June 2016:

Facility limit

Nature of facility $
Credit card facility

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events which haearoed after balance date

311,269
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Directors:

(&) the Financial Statements and accompanying notesus@in pages 24 to 62 are in accordance witlCtinporations
Act 2001 including:

() complying with Accounting Standards, tl®rporations Regulations 200dnd other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidateditgtst financial position as at 30 June 2016 anditef
performance for the financial year ended on thtg;dand

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that thep&ay will be able to pay its debts as and when flseome due
and payable; and

Note 2 confirms that the financial statements atsoply with International Financial Reporting Stardk as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The Directors have been given the declarationd&yChief Executive Officer and Chief Financial ©#i, as required by
section 295A of th€orporations Act 2001.

This Declaration is made in accordance with a té®wi of the Directors.
/'

DR. MALCOLM R. BRANDON
Chairman

Melbourne, 29 August 2016
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Genetic Technologies Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, I
declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

1. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2, no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Genetic Technologies Limited and the entities it controlled during the

period.

R
Sam Lobley Melbourne
Partner 29 August 2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers

) PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Freshwater Place, 2 Southbank Boulevard, SOUTHBANK VIC 3006, GPO Box 1331, MELBOURNE VIC 3001
T: 61 3 8603 1000, F: 61 3 8603 1999, www.pwc.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Genetic
Technologies Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Genetic Technologies Limited (the company),
which comprises the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income/(loss), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration for Genetic Technologies Limited (the consolidated
entity). The consolidated entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at year’s end or
from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the
directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the consolidated
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001.

_ PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Freshwater Place, 2 Southbank Boulevard, SOUTHBANK VIC 3006, GPO Box 1331, MELBOURNE VIC 3001
T: 61 3 8603 1000, F: 61 3 8603 1999, www.pwc.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Genetic Technologies Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including;:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June
2016 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

(b) the financial report and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 2.

Emphasis of Matter — Material Uncertainty Regarding Continuation as
a Going Concern

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 in the financial report, which indicates
that the consolidated entity incurred a total comprehensive loss after income tax of $7,151,746 and net
cash outflows from operations of $7,726,838 during the year ended 30 June 2016. The company’s
ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the company being successful in raising
additional funds via the issuance of new equity within the next twelve months. These conditions, along
with other matters set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the
company may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business and at the amounts stated in the financial report.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 11 to 20 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Genetic Technologies Limited for the year ended 30 June
2016 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Pr%é,%——/

Sam e Melbourne
Partner 29 August 2016
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Additional information required by the Listing Ralef the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) aoddisclosed
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The informatioovided is current as at 24 August 2016.

Home Exchange

The Company’s ordinary shares are quoted on thérdlias Securities Exchange. The home exchandéelbourne,
Victoria. The ASX code for the Company’s ordinalyares is GTG. The Company also has a listing ekILd
American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) on the NatioAalsociation of Securities Dealers Automated Qimrat
(NASDAQ) Capital Market in the U.S.A. Each ADR cprises 150 fully paid ordinary shares and tradesutite ticker
symbol GENE.

Distribution of Equity Securities
The number of shareholders as at 24 August 20h&edaby size of holding, in each class of sharesarfollows:

Range of shares Number of holders Number of shares
1-1,000 289 168,966
1,001 - 5,000 730 2,195,927
5,001 - 10,000 455 3,772,848
10,001 - 100,000 1,221 47,516,515
100,001 - 9,999,999,999 746 1,661,628,468
Total 3,162 1,715,282,724

The number of shareholders holding less than aKetable parcel” of shares (being 27,778 shares)383. The total
number of shares held by these shareholders orugdsAwas 15,164,675.

Twenty Largest Shareholders
The names of the twenty largest registered shatehobf the Company’s ordinary shares as at 24 0216 are:

Rank Name Number of Shares  Percentage held
1. NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 1,296,956,659 75.61
KENTGROVE CAPITAL PTY LTD <KENTGROVE CAPITAL
2. GROWTH A/C> 27,955,248 1.63
3. SECURITY & EQUITY RESOURCES LIMITED 15,073,506 .88
MR ROGER LETTS DAWKINS + MR WAYNE COX
4 <IMMUNOGENETICS R FDN WA A/C> 13,016,667 0.76
5. INNES PTY LIMITED <INNES P/L EMPLOYEES S/F A/C> 11,867,000 0.69
6. MS GAIL JEAN BRATZ 9,000,000 0.52
7. MR WARWICK WRIGHT 8,315,900 0.48
3. X\;éEKO ENTERPRISES PTY LTD <L&S WAKEFIELD S/F 7.809.664 0.46
9. MR JERRY HUI KANG GAO 7,000,000 0.41
10. WAKKO INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 6,945,099 0.40
11. gl;ll; PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD ICBC FS EQSEG NY 6.945,019 0.40
12. CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 6,121,565 0.36
13. IRWIN BIOTECH NOMINEES P/L <BIOA A/C> 6,000,000 0.35
14. LENFAM PTY LTD <SUPER FUND A/C> 6,000,000 0.35
15. MERVYN JACOBSON APS 5,714,934 0.33
16. JP MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 5,438,245 0.32
17. IRWIN BIOTECH NOMINEES PTY LTD <BIOA A/C> 5,0Q000 0.29
18. MR WARREN DWAYNE JONES 5,000,000 0.29
S H RAYBURN NOMINEES PTY LTD <S H RAYBURN SUPER
19. FUND A/C> 5,000,000 0.29
20. MJIGD NOMINEES PTY LTD <BSMI A/C> 4,849,129 0.28
Totals 1,460,008,635 85.12
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RESTRICTED SECURITIES
As at 24 August 2016 there were no ordinary shitwatswvere subject to escrow arrangements with tragainy.

VOTING RIGHTS
Article 17 of the Company’s Constitution stipulatee voting rights of Members as follows:

“Subject to any rights or restrictions for the tilmeing attached to any class or classes of shatewadhis Constitution:

@) On the show of hands every person present in thacitg of a Member or proxy, attorney or represtvda
(or in more than one of these capacities) has otes end

(b) On a poll every person present who is a Membermxyp attorney or representative has:
i. For each fully paid share that the person holdgpresents; one vote; and
ii. For each share other than a fully paid share tleperson holds or represents: that portion of

one vote that the amount paid (not credited) onstieres bears to the total amount paid and
payable on the share (excluding amounts credited).”
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